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Dear Sirs / Mesdames:

We are writing on behalf of Caza Goid Corp. (“Caza” or the “Company™) to
update our original application by which the Company received its 12g exemption and
related File Number. The update is mainly a result of the setting up of thc Company of
its new website at www.cazagold.net and to confirm that all future filing of public
material will be placed on that website. In addition, we enclose some recent
documentation which has been publicly filed on SEDAR in Canada with the applicable
regulatory parties. 1t is our understanding that an ‘amended’ original application is
required, and we therefore attach the same, in black-lined and clean versions (with
attachments).

Please advise at your earliest convenience if you have any comments or require
anything further.

Very truly yours,

Vector Corporate Finance La,\;v.y

\5@/

Stewart L. Lo

Cc: Caza Gold Corp.. P Yee
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. - Washington,
To: U.S. Securities and Exchange Commuission 105 Dc

Washington, DC 20549

Re: Exchange Act Rule 12 03-2(b) application for exemption_by Caza Gold Corp.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Caza Gold Corp. (“Caza” or the “Applicant”) hereby furnishes the information
noted below and attached hereto pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) (the “Rule”) promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), in support
of its application for the exemption provided the Rule from Section 12(g) of the
Exchange Act.

The Company confirms that it has hegun, and will be posting, on an ongoing
basis and for each subsequent fiscal vear, in_English, on its Internet Web site at
www.cazagold.net. all generally available public information and all the information
specified in paragraph (b)(1)(iii} of the Rule.

Upon completion of the “spin-out” transaction described below, Caza, which is a
foreign private 1ssuer, as defined in the Exchange Act, has less than $10,000,000 in assets
and more than 300 shareholders resident in the United States. The Applicant is
submitting this application in accordance with guidance provided in Staff Legal Bulletin
No. 4, dated September 16, 1997, issued by the Division of Corporation Finance of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”).

Caza was organized under the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia)
(“BCABC”) on November 15, 2007 in order to take part in an arrangement (the
“Arrangement’) disclosed in the Canarc Resource Corp. (“Canarc”) “Notice of Annual
and Special General Meeting to be held on April 29, 2008 and Management Information
Circular” dated as of April 3, 2008 (the “Information Circular”). The class of equity
securities that Caza is authorized to issue is solely common shares.

Information furnished pursuant to paragraph 2(b)(1}(v) of the Rule:

As set forth in the Information Circular, Canare prior to the Arrangement owned
its Caza gold exploration projects located in Mexico (the “Caza Gold Project”) through a
wholly-owned Mexican subsidiary, Minera Canarc de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. (the
“Mexican Subsidiary”). The Arrangement, which was passed by a resolution at the
meeting of shareholders, announced in the Information Circular and held on Apnl 29,
2008, is undertaken in order to effect a transfer of the Caza Gold Project to Caza by
means of an exchange of all of the outstanding shares of the Mexican Subsidiary for all of
the outstanding shares of Caza (14,396,901 shares). The purpose of the Arrangement 1$
to “spin-off” the Caza Gold Project into a separate company (Caza) and to seek to realize
the full potential of the Caza Gold Project by advancing it through the financing of Caza.
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U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

November 25, 2008May—-2608 |
Page 3 of 5 - Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption Application of Caza Gold Corp.

AMENDED I

1. Certificate of Incorporation # BCO0808504, Notice of Articles and
Articles filed pursuant to requirements of the BCABC with the British Columbia
Registrar of Companies on November 15, 2007.

Subparagraph (B) (“information ... filed or is required to be filed with a stock exchange |
on which [Caza’s] securities are traded and which was made public by such stock
exchange”):

Not applicable as Caza does not have a class of securities listed on any stock
exchange.

Subparagraph (C) (“information [Caza] ... has distributed or is required to be |
distributed to its security holders™):
None.

The response to subparagraph (C) notwithstanding, the Applicant submits herewith the
following Canarc documents related to the Arrangement and made public on and after the
date of the Information Circular:

1. Certificate of Incorporation # BC0O808504, Notice of Articles and Articles
filed pursuant to requirements of the BCABC with the Bntish Columbia
Registrar of Companies on November 15, 2007.

2. The Information Circular, which contains, inter alia, “Pro Forma Financial
Statements” for Caza at Schedule “A-2" and “Information Concerning Caza
Gold Corp. After the Armrangement” at Schedule “G”. The Information
Circular was distributed by Canarc to its security holders on or about April 3,
2008 pursuant to requirements of the BCABC;

3. News Release dated April 30, 2008 of Canarc entitled “Canarc Shareholders
Approve All Resolutions at Annual and Special General Meeting Held on
April 29, 2008 in Vancouver, British Columbia, Including Special Resolution
to Spin-Out Mexican Gold Projects to Subsidiary ‘Caza Gold Corp.” and
Distribute Caza Shares to Canarc Shareholders.”;

4. New Release dated May 13, 2008 of Canarc entitled “Shareholder Update -
First Quarter Review 2008.7;

5. Certified Copy of Court Approval to the Plan of Arrangement dated May 13,
2008.

6. New Release dated June 18, 2008 of Canarc entitled “TSX approves Caza
Gold Spin-Out by way of a Plan of Arrangement.”;

All _the_above documents have previously been submitted bv letter and
Application _dated June 17, 2008. We attach hereto the following new
documents, all have which been released to the public and distributed as may be
required:

7. Final Copyv of Plan of Arrangement Apreement dated February 15, 2008;
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U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

November 25, 2008May—2008 |
Page 4 of 5 - Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption Application of Caza Gold Corp.

AMENDED |
8. New Release dated September 29, 2008 and related Material Change Report;
9. Interim linancial statements and MD&A for the quarter ending June 30, 2008;
and
10. Interim financial statements and MD&A for the quarter ending September 30,
2008;

The Applicant hereby agrees to furnish such information and documents to the
Commission as Caza makes public and is required by the Rule for purposes of the
exemption provided for therein. Such information and documents shall not constitute an
admission for any purpose that the Applicant is subject to the Exchange Act.

Very truly yours,
Caza Gold Corp.
Per:

Title: Stewart L. Lockwood, Secretary
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U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

May—November 25, 20082008

Page 5 of 5 - Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption Application of Caza Gold Corp.
AMENDED

Identification list of information furnished pursuant to subparagraph (b){1)(i) of the

Rule:

Certificate of Incorporation # BC0808504 dated November 15, 2007 and
related Constating documents.

Information Circular dated April 3, 2008

News Release dated April 30, 2008

News Release dated May 13, 2008

Copy of Court Approval to the Plan of Arrangement dated May 13, 2008.

New Release dated June 18, 2008
Final Copv of Plan of Arrangement Agreement dated February 15, 2008;

New Release dated September 29, 2008 and related Material Change

Report
Interim financial statements and MD&A for the quarter ending June 30,

10.

2008

Interim financial statements and MD&A for the quarter ending

September 30, 2008:
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AMENDED 0 200

“e D sn”’Q?On
To: U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Tos ™" O¢

Washington, DC 20549

Re: Exchange Act Rule 12g3-2(b) application for exemption by Caza Gold Corp.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Caza Gold Corp. (“Caza” or the “Applicant”) hereby fumishes the information
noted below and attached hereto pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) (the “Rule™) promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), in support
of its application for the exemption provided the Rule from Section 12(g) of the
Exchange Act.

‘The Company confirms that it has begun, and will be posting, on an ongoing
basis and for each subsequent fiscal year, in English, on its Internet Web site at
www.cazagold.net, all generally available public information and all the information
specified in paragraph (b)(1)(iii) of the Rule.

Upon completion of the “spin-out” transaction described below, Caza, which s a
foreign private issuer, as defined in the Exchange Act, has less than $10,000,000 in assets
and more than 300 shareholders resident in the United States. The Applicant is
submitting this application in accordance with guidance provided in Staff Legal Bulletin
No. 4, dated September 16, 1997, issued by the Division of Corporation Finance of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”).

Caza was organized under the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia)
(“BCABC”) on November 15, 2007 in order to take part in an arrangement (the
“Arrangement”) disclosed in the Canarc Resource Corp. (“Canarc™) *“Notice of Annual
and Special General Meeting to be held on April 29, 2008 and Management Information
Circular” dated as of April 3, 2008 (the “Information Circular”). The class of equity
securities that Caza is authorized to issue 1s solely common shares.

Information furnished pursuant to paragraph 2(b){(1)(v) of the Rule:

As set forth in the Information Circular, Canarc prior to the Arrangement owned
its Caza gold exploration projects located in Mexico (the “Caza Gold Project”) through a
wholly-owned Mexican subsidiary, Minera Canarc de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. (the
“Mexican Subsidiary™). The Arrangement, which was passed by a resolution at the
meeting of shareholders, announced in the Information Circular and held on Apnl 29,
2008, i1s undertaken in order to effect a transfer of the Caza Gold Project to Caza by
means of an exchange of all of the outstanding shares of the Mexican Substidiary for all of
the outstanding shares of Caza (14,396,901 shares). The purpose of the Arrangement is
to “spin-off”’ the Caza Gold Project into a separate company (Caza) and to seek to realize
the full potential of the Caza Gold Project by advancing it through the financing of Caza.
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U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

November 25, 2008

Page 4 of 5 - Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption Application of Caza Gold Corp.
AMENDED

8. New Release dated September 29, 2008 and related Material Change Report;

9. Interim financial statements and MD&A for the quarter ending June 30, 2008,
and

10.  Interim financial statements and MD&A for the quarter ending September 30,
2008, '

The Applicant hereby agrees to furnish such information and documents to the
Commission as Caza makes public and is required by the Rule for purposes of the
exemption provided for therein. Such information and documents shall not constitute an
admission for any purpose that the Applicant is subject to the Exchange Act.

Very truly yours,

Caza Gold Corp.
Per: {

S

Title: Stewart L. Lockwood, Secretary
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U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

November 25, 2008

Page 5 of S - Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption Application of Caza Gold Corp.
AMENDED

Identification list of information furnished pursuant to subparagraph (b)(1)(i) of the

10.

Rule:

Certificate of Incorporation # BC0808504 dated November 15, 2007 and
related Constating documents.

Information Circular dated April 3, 2008

News Release dated April 30, 2008

News Release dated May 13, 2008

Copy of Court Approval to the Plan of Arrangement dated May 13, 2008.

New Release dated June 18, 2008
Final Copy of Plan of Arrangement Agreement dated February 15, 2008;

New Release dated September 29, 2008 and related Material Change
Report

Interim financial statements and MD&A for the quarter ending June 30,
2008

Interim financial statements and MD&A for the quarter ending
September 30, 2008;
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MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT made as of the 15th day of February, 2008,

BETWEEN:
CANARC RESQURCE CORP,, a company incorporated under the laws of the
Province of British Columbia end having a registered office at 1040-99% West
Hastings Street, Vancouver, B.C., V6C 2W2
(rereinafier refeored (o 23 “ Canare™)

OF THE FIRST PART

CAZA GOLD CORP., a company incotporated under the laws of the Province
of British Columbia and having a registered office at 1040-999 West Hastings
Street, Vancouver, B.C., V6C 2W2

{bereinafter referred to es “Caza™) -

OF THBE SECOND PART

RECTIALS

WHEREAS Cznarc and Caza, 8 wholly-owned subsidiary of Canarc, have agreed to procesed with a
proposed transaction by way of Plan of Arrangement whereby certain assets of Canarc will be transferred to Caza,
and & gerics of share exchanpes will take place which will result in the current shareholders of Canarc having
sharcholdings in Canare and Caza;

AND WHEREAS Caza was incorporated to facilitate the completion of the Arrengement;

AND WHEREAS the parties hereto wish to record their agrecments with regand 1o the Arrangement and of
Armmangement;

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES that, in consideration of the premises and the
respective covenanty and agretments berein contained, the parties herelo covenant and agree ns follows:
ARTICLE 1
ghﬁkhﬂknﬁ.v?.
1.1 Definitions

In this Agreement incloding the retitals hereto, unless there is something i the subject metter or

context inconsistent therewith, words and terms defined in the Circular shall bave the same meaning when used
herein and, in addition, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

..)NHRHB:._ means this Arrangement Agreement; .

poictionts\l-sedaricancrelcaragold\planarrangement\arrangagms\arr-agyfinal doc /
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"Arrangement” means the armngement under the provisions of Section 288 of the Corporations Act, on
the terems and conditions set forth in the Plan of An or any dment or variation thereto made
in accordance with gection 6.1 of this Agreement;

“Business Day'* means any day, other than a Saturday or » Sunday, when Canadian chartered banks are
open for business in the City of Vancouver;

"Circulsr" means the definitive form, together with any smendments thereto, of the management
jnformation circular of Canarc to be prepared and sent to the holders of Canarc Common Shares in
cennection with the Meeting;

"Cnuare Contmon Shares™ mean the commaon shares without par vahue in the capital of Canarc;

"Canarc Options'"' mean stock option granted by Canarc to purchase Canarc Commen Sharcs pursuant to
Cenarc's stock option plan,

"Cazs Common Shares" means the common shares in the capital of Caza;

"Corporations Act™ means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbin), SB.C.-2002, .57, s
amended;

"Court" nicans the Supreme Court of British Columbia;

“Dividend” means the proposed dividend in kind, being mads up onESQr : 955,751 common shares
of Caza 10 be distributed ro Shareholders of COM to the Arrangy Agr

“Dividend Record Date” means the record date for the distribution of Dividend proposed to be set
sometime after Court Approval of the Arrangement, in conjunction with the TSX,

“Effec tive Date™ means the effective date of the Arrangement, snd is expected to be on or about the first
business day following the Dividend Record Date, or a3 otherwise set in conjunction with the TSX and, if
y, the date all rel & s are accepted for filing by the Registrar.

"Meeting" means the Special geoeral meeting of the holders of Canarc Common Shares to be held to
consider, among other matters, the Arrangement, and any adjournmenl thereof;

"Order" means the order of the Count approving the Arranpement pursuant to the Corporations Act 2 draft
copy of which is attached as Appendix “II™;

"Plan of Arrangement™ means the plan of arangement which is annexed hereto as Appendix 1 and any
amendment or varietion therets made in accordance with section 6.1 hereof

"Registrar™ means the Registrar of Companies under the Corporations Act;

"TSX" means the Toronio Steck Exchange,

1.2 Subsidiary
(a) For the purposes of this Agreement, a corporation is a subsidiary of another corporation where:
0] it is controlled by

(A} that other cotporstion; or
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u .
{B) that other corporation and one or mone carpomations, each of which is controlisd
by that otber corporation; or
{C) two or moro corporations, each of which is controlled by that other corporation;
ar
(i) il is & subsidiary of that other corporation.
(b) For the purpose of this Agreement, a corporation is controlied by a person where:

(i} shares of the corpomation carrying more than 50% of the votes for the election of dircctors
are held, other than by way of security only, by or for the benefit of that person; aod

(ii) the votes carriod by the shares mentioned in paragraph (i) &re sufficient, if cxercised, to
elect a majority of the directors of the corporation.

13 Interpretation Not Affected by Headings

The division of this Agreement ints articles, sections and other portions and the insertion of
beadings are for convenitnce of reference only and shall not affect the comstruction or interpretation of this
Agrecment  The torms "this Agreement”, "hereof” and "h der” and similar expressions refer (o this Agreement
(inctuding the eppendices hereto) and not to any particular article, section or other portion hereof and include aoy
agreement or instrument supplementary or ancillary heretn.

14 Number, Et Cetera

Unless the context otherwise requires, words importing the singular number shall inckude the
phural and vice versa, words importing the wse of any gender shall include both genders; and words importing
persons shall inelude firms, corporation, trusts and partnerships,
15 Date for Any Action

In the event that any date¢ on which any action is required o be taken hereunder by any of the

parties bereto is not a Business Day in the place where the action is required to be taken, such action shall be

required to be taken on the next succeeding day which is & Business Day at such place, unless otherwise agreed to.
16 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, together with the appendices, schedules, agr its and other d herein
ot therein referred to, constitute the eqtire sgreement #meng the parties pertaining to the subject manner hereof and
supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, negotiations and discussions, whether oral or written, among the
parties with respect to the subject metter hercof.

1.7 Currency

All sums of money which are referred to in this Agreement are expressed in lawful money of
Canada unless otherwise specified.

p-\elients\[-sedar, { id\planarrangemer
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ARTICLE 2
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
21 Representations and Watrranties of Canare
Canarc represents and warrants to and in favour of Caza as follows:

@) Canarc is a company duly organized and validly existing under the Corporations Act and
has corporate power and authority to own, optrate and lease its property and assets and to
carty on its business a5 now being conducted by i, aod it is duly registered, licensed or
quatified to carry on business in each jurisdiction in which a material amount of its
business is conducted of where the character of its properties and asscts makes such
registration, licensing or qualification necessary;

) Canarc has the corporate power and antharity to enter into this Agreement and, subject to
obtaining the requisite spprovals contemplated hereby, to perform its obligations
hereunder;

{c) the anthorized capital of Canarc consists of an unlimited wumber of ahares, of which
71,734,505 Canarc Common Shares ace jssuad as of February 15, 2008,

{d) no individual, firm, corporalion or other person holds any securities convertible or
cxchangeablt into any shares of Canare or of any of its subsidiaries or has any agreement,
warrent, option or any right ¢apable of becoting an agreement, wattant or option for the
purchase of atry unisswed shares of Canarc or any of its subsidiaries, except for:

[£)] holders of Canarc Warrants, who have the right to purchase an aggregate of
1,100,000 Canerc Commeon Shares pursuent to the Canarc Warrants; and

(i} the hokders of Canarc Options, whe bave options to putchase an aggregate of
approximately 6,884,000 Cenare Commion Shares pursuant te the Caparc
Options;
() the cxcoution and delivery of this Agreement by Caoarc and the completion of the
transections conternplaied herein:

() do not and will not result in a breach of, or violate aay term er provision of, the
Notice of Articles or articles of Canarc or any of the constating docaments of its
subsidiaries;

(i) subject to receiving amy consent As may be Ty under any ag t by
which Canarc or any of its subsidiaries is bound, do not and will not, as of the
Effective Datz, conflict with, result in the breach of, constitute a defanit under,
or acceierate or permit the leration of the perft required by, amy
agreement, instument, license, permit or authority to which Cenerc and its
subsidiaries tken as a whole is gubject or result in the creation of any lien,
charge or encumbrance upen any the maicrial mssets of Canarc or any of its
subsidiaries under eny soch agretment or instrument, or give to apy perton any |
material interest or right, inchiding rights of purchase, termination, cancellation
or acceleration, under any such sgreement, instrument, license, permit or
uthority; and

(iii) subject G0 receipt of necessary approvals of the holders of Canarc Common
Shares and the Court, do not and will not es of the Effective Date violate any
- provision of law or administrative regulation or any judicial or administrative
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5

regulation or any judicial or administrative award, judgment or decres
applicable and known to Canarc, after due inquiry, the breach of which would
have a material adverse effect on Canare and i1s subsidiaries taken asa whols;

{iv) ta the best of the _Ea&_on_ma of Canarc after due inguiry, Ena are no actions,

mE_uEaanEmnSE.q L _Qg‘&
against or affecting Canarc or .EwnuEEEQomnEEn hF&QEBEQ
hefore or by any governmental department, commission, board, bureau, court,

agency, arbitrator or instrumentality, domestic or foreign, of any kind nor, to the

best of the knowledge of Canarc, after due inquiry, are there any existing facts
or conditioms which may reasonably be expected, individually or in the
aggregate, 1o be a property basis for any actions, suits, proceedings or
investipations, which in any case would prevent or hinder the ¢onswmmation of
the transactions contemplated by thin Agrecment or the Plan of Arrangement or
which may reasonably be expected individually or in the sggregate to have a
material adverse effect on the business, operations, properties, assets or sfiain,
financial or otherwise, of Canarc and its subsidiaries, taken as a wholo, either
before or after the Effective Date;

(V)] the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the completion of the
transaetion contemplated herein have been duly epproved by the board of
directora of Canarc and this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by
Canarc and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Canarc enforceable
against it in accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency or other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally
and subject to the qualification that equitable remedics may only be granted in
the: diserction of 4 court of competent jurisdiction; and

(vi) the information set forth in the Circular relating to Canare &nd ity subsidiaries
and the interests of Canarc and such subsidiarics, their respective businesses and
[roperties and the effect of the Arrangement #nd any cther transsctions referred
to in this Circuler thereon is trus, cotrect and complete in all material respects
and does oot conitain any untrue statement of any materiel fact or cmit 10 stato
any matetial fact required 1o be stazad therein or necessary in order 1o make the
statements therein not misleading in the light of the circumstapces in whith they
are made.

22 Representations and Warranties of Caza

Caza represents and warmnts to and in favour of Canarc a3 follows:

(a)
)

)

Caza is a company duly organized and vajidly existing under the Corporations Act;

Caza has the corporate power and suthority to enter into this Agreement and, subject to
obtaining the requisite approvals contemplated bereby, %o perform it obligations
hereunder;

the authorized capital of Caza consists of an unlimited mmnber of Caza Commen Shares
without par value of which there is 100 issued and outstanding as at the date hereaf;

except as contemplaied by this Agreement, oo individual, firm, eorporation or other
person holds any securities convertible or exchangeable into any shares of Caza or has
any agrccment, warrani, option or any right capeble of becoming an agreement, watrant
or option for the purchase of any vnissued shares of Caza;
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(&) the execution and delivery of this Agreement by Caza and the completon of the
transaction contzmplated herein:

(vii)  do not and will notresult in & breach of, or violats any term or provision of, the
Natice of Articles 2nd articles of Caza; and

(vii) do not and will not, as of the Effective Date, violats any provision of law or
2dministrative regulations or eny judicial or administrative award judgment or
decroo applicable and known to Caza efter due inquiry, the breach of which
would have s material adverse effsct on Cazn;

(D the exccution and delivery of this Agr and the letion of the transactions
contemplated berein have been duly approved by the board om directors of Caza and this
Agreement has besn executed and delivered by Caza and constitutes a valid and binding
ohligation of Caza enforceable against it in accordanse with its terms, except 25 may be
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other Iaws affecting the caforoement of creditors’
rights generally and subject to the qualification that equiteble remedies may only be
granted in the discretion of a court of competent jurisdiction; and

[§3] Caza is pot engaged in any business nor is it & parly W of bound by any contract,
agreement, arrangement, instument, licemss, permit or nputhority, other than this
Agreement and any trapsaction or agreement necessary <r incidertal to the fulfillment of
its oblipations upder this Agreement, por does it have any liabilities, contingent or
otherwiss, except as provided in or permitted by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 3

ARRANGEMENT

il

3.z

33.

34

Canarc and Caza agree lo effect the Armangement pursuant to the provisions of Section 288 of the
Corporations Act on the terins and conditions contgined in this agrecment and the Plan of Arrangement.

The Armngeinent shall become effective at 12:01 a.m. on the Effective Date or a3 otherwise determined in
conjunction with the 18X and its policies.

Subject to satisfaction of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and termination pursuant o Article 6,
the parties shall use all rezscnable commercial efforts and do alf things reasonably required o cause the
Arrangement to becomt effoctive on or sbout 2 date within thres weeks of May 12, 2008, or on such other
date a5 Canarc may determine and, in conjunction therewith, to causs ths transacticn conternplated in the
Plan of Arrangement to be completed on or prior the Effective Date. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, the parties shall call the Meeting tnd mail the Circular te the holder of Capare Common Shares
and, after the meeting in the event of an affirmative vote, proceed forthwith to apply for the Order and the
final 2pproval of the TSX, ths issue of cestain shares of Caza to Canarc in exchangs for certain property
-huEnﬂ-anEOHEnQEEEmHERS.gEEHEagEmEOWﬂERE%
documents,

Filing of Order

Subject to the rights of termiration contained in Astitle 6 hereof, upon the members of Canare spproving
the Amrengement by Specia) Resofution in accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Act, Canarc
cbtaiing the Order and the other conditions contained in Article § bersof being complied with er waived,
Carare shall, if required, send a copy of the Order 10 the Registrar of Companies for filing pursuant to
Section 202 of the Corporations Act, and shall, as dettrmined by Cansre, file with the TSX such other
documents as may be required in order to effect the Armangement. Upop such filing and issuance by the
Registrer of the certificate or certificates giving effect to the Arrangement {if required), and upon TSX final
gpprovel, Canarc agd Caza shall exchange such other documents as may be necessary or desirable in
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connection with the¢ completion of the trapsactions contemplatcd by this Agroement and the Plao of

Arrangement.

ARTICLIL 4

COVENANTS

4.1 Caovenants of Canare

Cannrc hercby covezents end agrees as follows:

(8)

&)

()

(d)

(¢}

0

until the Effective Date, Canarc and cach of its Subsidiaries shall carry oo its business in
the ordinary course and shall not enter inle any transaction or incur any obligation or
liability out of the ordinary course of its business, except as otherwise contemplated in
Emu bu.ﬂﬂga.

except a9 otherwise conlemplated in this Agreement, until the Effective Date, Canarc
shall not, and shall not suffer or permil any of its Subsidiaries to, merge into or with, or
amalgamate, consolidate or enter into any other corporate reorganization with, any other
corporation or person or perform awy act of enter into any transaction or negotiation
which reasonably could be expected to, directly or indirectly, interfere or be inconsisient
with the completion of the Ammangement;

Canare shall, in a timely and expeditious manner, file the Circular in all jurisdictions
where the Circular is required to be filed by Canarc and mait this Circular to the holders
of Canarc Couxmon Shares, the directors of Canarc and the anditors of Canare, all i
sccordance with the terms of the Corporations Act and other applicable law;

Canarc shall perform the abligations required to be performed by it, and shall emter into
all agreements required to be entersd into by it under this Agreement and the Plan of
Asrangement and shall do all sueh other acts and things s may be necessary or desirable
on order to carry out and give effect 1o the trapsactions es described in the Circular and,
without limiting the generality of the foregoing Canarc shall seek:

{i) the approval of the holders of Canarc Common Shares required for the
impl jon of the A

img al;

(i) the Order as provided for insection 4.3; and

iiiv)  such other consents, orders, rulings, spprovals and assurances a3 counsel may

nmcﬁnﬁgégnﬂgunwﬁﬁ. .awnrn?.:
including those referred 1o in soction 5.1; -

Ceanarc will convene the Mesting =3 soon s practicable and will solicit proxies 1o be
voted at the Meeting in favour of the Arrangement and all other resolutions referred to in
the Circular; and

Canare will use all reasonahle efforts to eause each of the conditions precedent set out in
seotions 5.1 and 5.2 to be complied with in or before the Effective Date.

4.1 Covenants of Caza

Caza hereby covenants and agrees with Canarc as follows:

p-lelients\}sedarieanarelcoragold planarrang fh ngagmi\arr-agifinal. doc
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() until the Effective Date, Caza shall not merge and shall not permit any if its Subsidisties

. 1o merge int> or with, or amalpamate or consolidats with, or enter intoc any other

corporate reotganization with, any other corporation or person, perform any &ct of enter

into any tmpsaction or vegotiation which interferes or is inconsistent with the
Armangement or other transactions contempiated by this Agreement; and

(b) Caza shall perform the obligations raquired to be perfomued by it, and shall enter into all
agreements required to be enlered inte by it, under this Agreement and the Plan of
Armangement and shall do &il such other acts and things es may be necessary or desirable
in order to carry out and give effect to the Arrangement amd related transactions as
described in the Circular and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Caza shall
sock and cooperste with Canarc in seeking:

{) the Order as pravided for in section 4.3, and
(i) such other consents, orders, rulings, approvals end sssurances as counsel may

advise arc pecessary or desimble for the impl tation of the Am
including those referred to in section 5.1;

{e) use ity good faith best efforts to raise capital, 29 soon as practicable following the
Effective Date, by a financing or otherwise to allow il to carry out the Phase 1 work
programs an the Caza Geld Project.

43 Court Order

1f the approval of holders of Canarc Common Shares of the Arrangement is obtained by Canarc, 2s
3001 a5 practicable thereafter each party will take the necessary skeps to submit the Amengement to the Court and
spply for the Order As soon as practicable thereafter, and subject to compliance with any other conditions provided
for in Article 5§ hereof and further subject to the provisions of section 5.2, Canarc end Cazn shall, if required, file
with the Registrar pursuant to section 202 of the Corporations Act a eertified copy of the Order and amendments, if
any, to their respective Notice of Articles to give effect to the Arraogement.

44 Non-Sarvival of Representations, Warraniies and Covenants

! The respective representations, warmanties and covenants of Canarc and Caza coptained herein
shafl expire and be tcrminated and cxtinguished at end from the Effective Date, other than the covenants in soctions
4. 1{d), 4.2(b), 4.2(c) and 4.2{d} and 5o party shall have any lisbility or further obligation to any party hereunder in
respect of the respective ropresentations, warranties and covenants thereafier, other than the covenants in sections
4.1(d), 4.2(b), 4.2(c} and 42(d).
ARTICLE S
CONDITIONS
51 Mntual Conditions Precedent

The respective obligations of each perty hereto to complete the transactions contemplated by this

Agreement shall be subject 10 the satisfaction, on or before the Effestive Date, of the following conditions, none of
which may be waived by any party hersto in whole or in part:

(8} the Armangement, with or without amendment, shall have been approved at the Mesting
in sccordance with the Corporstions Act; :
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{b) the Order ghall have been cbtained in form and substance satisfactory to Canarc acting
reasonably;

(e} no action shall have been instituted and be continning on the Effective Date for zn
injunction to restrain, a declarstory judgment in respect of or damages on eccount of or
relating to the Amangement and 0o céase trading or similer order with respect to any
securitics of Canarc or Caza shall have been issued and remain cutstanding;

@ the orders and rulings, if eny, from the British Columbin Securities Commissien and
securilies regulatory authorities in each of the Provioces of Canada 1o permit the
securities to be issued p 1o the Arrang ta be freely tredable in each of the
Provinces of Canada shall have been obtained, cach such order and ruling being in form
and substance acceptable to Cenarc;

) ail material regulatory requirements shall have been complied with and all other material
consents, agreements, orders and spprovals, including regutatory and judicial approvals
and orders, necessary for the completion of the wansactions provided for in this
Agreement or conternplated by the Circular shall kave been obtained or received from the
pertons, authorities or bodies having furisdiction in the circumstances;

5] poue of the consents, orders, regulations or spprovals contemplated hersin ghall contain
termy or conditions or require undertakings or security deemed unsatisfactary or
unnacceptable by Canarc or Caza acting reasonably; and

® this Agreement shall not have been terminated under Article 6.
52 Coaditions and Obligations of Each Party

The obligation of each of Crnarc and Caza to complets the transections contercplated by this
Agreement is further subject to the condition, which may be waived by any such party without prejudics to its right
to rely on eny other condition in favour of such party, that each and every one of the covenants of the other party
hereto to be performed oo or before the Effective Date pursunnt to the terms of this Agresinent shall bave been duly
performed by such party and that, except as affected by the transactions consemplated by this Agresment, the
representations and warranties of the other party hereto shall be e aod correct in all materfz] respecty as at the
Effective Date, with the same effect ag if such representations and watrantiea had been made at and as of such time,
and each such party shall have received a certificate, dated the Effective Date, of a senior officer of each other party
confirming the same. .

53 Merger of Conditions

‘The canditions set put in sections 5.1 and 5.2 shall be conclusively decmed to have beea satisfied,
waived or released upen receipt of finzl TSX approval 1o the Arrangement and, if required, the delivery to the
Registrer pursuant to section 292 of the Corporations Act of a ¢ertified capy of the Order to give effect to the
Arrangement and any amendments, if any, to the Notice of Axticles of each of Canarc and Caza,
ARTICLE 6
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION
6.1 Amendment

This Agreement and the Plan of Arrangement may, at any time and from time lo time before or
after the holding of the Meeting but not later then the Effective Date, be amended in a manner not materially

prejudicial 1o the sharsholders of Canare by written agreement of the parties hertto without, subject to applicable
law, further notice to or authorization on the part of the shareholders of Canarc for ety reason whatsoever.
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62 Termination

This Agrecment may, &t any time before or after the helding of the Meeting but 1o later than the
Effective Dats, be terminated by the board of directors of Canare without further nofice to, or action on the part of,
its sharcholders for whatever rensons Canare considers appropriate.

‘Without limiting the generality of the foregaing, Canare may texmminate this Agrecment:

(®) in the event that any right of dissent, if any, is epecifically provided for by Cout order in
respect of Canarc Common Shares, immediately prior to the Effective Date, in the event
any shareholders have exertised theis right of dissent; or

[(:]] if prior to the Effective Date there is e materinl change in the business, operations,
properties, assets, labilities or condition, financial or otherwise, of Canerc and its
subsidiaries, taken as 8 whole, or in Caza, or any change in general economic conditions,
interest rates of any outhreak or material escalation in, or the cessation of, hostilities or
any other calamity or crisis, or there should develop, ocour of comt int efféct any
occurrence which has 8 material effect on the finaneial markets of Canada and the board
of directors of Canarc determines in its solt judgment that it woutd be inndvisable in such
circumstances for Canarc tc proceed with the Arrangement.

63 Effect of Termination

Upon the termination of this Agreement ¢ to section 6.2 hersof, o party shali have any

linbility or further chligation to eny other party herennder,
ARTICLE?Y
GENERAL

1 Notices

All notices which may or are requied to be given pursuant to any provision of this Agreement
shall be given or made in writing and shall be deemed to be validly given if served personally or by facsimile, in
each case 1o the attention of the senior officer at the following addresscs or at such other addresses as shall be
specified bry the partica by like notice:

If tp Canarc:

Suite 301 — 700 West Georgia Street
Vaocouver, B.C., Capada, V6C 1G8

Attention: Bradford Cooke, CEQ
Facsimile: (604) 685-9744

with & capy to:

Vector Corporate Finance Lawyers
£040-995 West Hastings Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 2W2

Attention: Stewart L. Lockwood
Facsimile: (604) 683-2643

If to Caze:
Suite 301 - 700 West Georgia Street
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Vaopcouver, B.C., Canada, VSC 1GE
Attention: Fhilip Yes
Facsimile: (604) 685-9744

The date of receipt of any such ootice shall be deemed to be the date of delivery or facsimile
transmission thereof.

T2 Assignment

No party may assign its rights or obligations under chis Agreement or the Arrangement without the
prior written consent of the other party hereto.

13 Binding Effect
This Apreement and the Arrangement shall be binding upon and shall enure 10 the benefit of the
. parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns and, in the casc of the Amangement, shall emure to the
" benefit of the holders from time to ime of Ceparc Common Sheres,
74 Waiver
Any waiver or relezse of any of the provisions of this Agrocmeat, to be effective, must be in
writing executed by the party granting the same. Waivers may only be granted upon compliance with the termns
goveming amendments set forth in section 5.1 hereof, applied mutatis mutandis,
75 Governing Law
This Agreement shail be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province
of Brtish Columbia and the laws of Canada appliceble therein and shall be treated in all respects a3 a British
Colunibia contract.
76 Counterpasts

This Apreetent may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which shall be desmed an
original but all of which together shall constitnte one and the sgame instmment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto bave extonted this Agretment as of the date first
written. ’

CANARC RESOURCE CORP. CAZA GOLD CORP.
28 (are |
Per, A9 . Z

‘This is page 11 of that certain agreement dated February 15, 2008, betweea CANARC RESOURCE CORP. of the
first part and CAZA GOLD CORP. of the second part.
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APPENDIX I TO THE ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT

PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT UNDER SECTION 188
OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT (BRITISH COLUMEILA)

ARTICLE 1

INTERPRETATION-

" 11 Definitions

In this Plan of Arrangement, unless there is something in the subject matter or context inconsistent
therewith:

"Arrangement” rmeans the arrangemsot propased under the provisions of soction 238 of the

Corporations Act on the terms set out in this Plan of Arrangement;

" Arrangement Agreement” means the egreement, dated February 15, 2008, between Canarc and
Caza to which this Plan of Arrengement is atiached a9 Appendix I, as the same may be amended
from time to time;

“Arrangement Record Date” means the Business Day inunediately preceding the Effective Date;

"Business Day™ means any day, other than s Saturday or a Sunday, when Canadian chartered
barks are open for business in the City of Vancouver,; R

"Circolar” means the definitive form, together with any amendments thereto, of the management
information cireular of Canars to be prepared and sept to the holders of Canarc Common Shares in
ion with the Meet:

"Corporations Act'” means the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia), SB.C. 2002, ¢.57
ns amcnded;

"Canarc" means Capare Resource Corp., a company incorporated under the Carporations Act;

"Canarc Common Share means any ono of the common shares which Cenar is authorized to
issus;

"Canarc Commun Shareholders” mezns those persons who, as at the ¢lose of business on the
Arrangement Rocord Date, ere registered holders of Canerc Comumon Shares;

“Caza” means Caza Gold Corp., a company incorporated under the Corporations Act;

“Caza Commen Share'™ means any ooc of the common shares of Caza @ be issued to holders of
New Cenarc Preforred Shares under the Arangement in exchange for such New Canarc Preferred
Shares;

"*Court"” means the Supreme Court of British Columbia;

“Dissent Rights™ means the potential right of a holder of Canarc Common Shares {o dissent, if so

specifically provided by the Court, in respect of the Arrangemeat pursuant to the procedures set
forth in section 238 of the Corporations Act;
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"Eifective Date™ means tho date on which the Order and all required documents aro accepted for
filing by the Registrar;

"Order" means the order of the Count approving the Armangement pursuant to the Corporations
Acty

"Holder", when pot qualified by the adjective "registered”, means the person entitfed to a share
hereunder whether or not registered or entitled to be registered in respect thereef in the register of
members of Canarc or Caza, #s the case may be;

"ITA" means the facome Tax Act (Cansda), as zmended;

“Meeting” means the Annual and Special general meeting of the bolders of Canarc Common
Shares to be held to consider, among other matters, the Arzrangement, snd any adjournment
thersof;

“Net Fair Market Value of the Transferred Assets” means an amount determined by the board
of directors of Canarc as of the Effective Date, equal to the fair market valuo of the Transferred
Assets;

"Plan of Arrangement™ means this plan of arrangement in Appendix I, as it may be emended
from time to time in accordance with section 5.1 of the Amangemeat Agreement or 6.] of the Plan
of Arrangemeant;

"Registrar" means the Registar under the Corporalicos Act
“Transferred Assets” means tho Transferred Propertics and the Transferred Cashy;
"Transfer Agent” means Computershare Trust Company of Canada;

“Transferred Froperties” means all of the issued shares of Minera Canerc de Mexico SA ds CV
to be transferred, directly or indirectly, from Canace w0 Ceza pursuant to paragraph 3.1.2 hereof,

L2 Headings

The division of this Plan of Arrangement inio articles, sections, subsections and paragraphs, and
the insertion of headings are for the convenience of reference only and chall not affect the construction or
interpretetion of this Plan of Arrangetnent, The terms “this Plan of Amangement”, “hereof”, "herein”, "hereunder”
and similer expressions refer to this Plan of Arrangement 25 a whole and not to any particular article, section,
subsection, paragraph or part hereof, Unless something in the subject matter or contaxt is inconsistent therewith, all
references berein to articles, sections, subsections end paragraphs are to articles, sections, subsections and
paragraphs to this Plan of Arrangement.

13 Extended Meaningy

In this Plan of Arrangement, words importing the singular mumber only shall include the ploral -

and vice versa, and words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine and newter genders, and words
importing pérsens shall include individuals, partnerships, associations, forms, trusts, unincorporated organizations
and corporations,

L4 Currency

All references to currency herein are to lawfil money of Canada uniess otberwise specified hertin.
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ARTICLE 2

ARRANGEMENT AGREEMENT

21 Arrangement Agreement

This Plan of Armngement is made pursuant to and subject o the provisions of the Arrangement
Agreenent.

ARTICLE3
THE ARRANGEMENT
ES | The Arrangement

On the Effective Date, the following sball occur and be deemed to accur in the following order
withouwt further act or fonnality, notwithstanding amything contained in the provisions attaching to any of the
securities of Canarc or of Caza, and with each transaction or event being deemed to oceur immediately after the
occurrence of the transaction gr event immediateiy preceding it:

3.1.1  Cazn shall issuc to Canare 14,346,801 Cazs Commop Shares which, combined with the
100 Caza Common Shares cumently issued to Canarc, shall total 14,346,901 Caza
. Comon Shates, beiog all of the issned share capital of Caza as of the Effective Date;

31.2  Caoare will transfer the Transferred Assets to Caza in consideration for Caza issuing o
Canare that mumber of shares set out above, which total shares of Caza ghall have an
aggrogate redemption and retraction price and fair market vatue equal to the Net Fair
Masket Value of the Transferred Assets ot the time of the transfer.

3.1.3  Canarc will announce the Dividend Record Date and complets the Dividend and share
issuance to its shareholders in accordance with the polieies of the TSX and all applicabie
corpomate and security laws, orders and regulations.

32 Dretmed Fully Paid and Non- Assessable Shares

All Caza Common Shares issued pursnant hereto shall ba deemed 1o be validly issued apd
outstanding a9 fuily paid and nen-essessable shares for all purposes of the Cosporations Act.

33 Frctional Shares of Coza

Fractional intsrests in Caza Conunon Shares created by the sale and transfer set ont in section
3.1.3 will be rounded down to the nearest whole Caza Common Share.

34  Sopplementary Actions

Notwithstanding that the transaction and events set out in section 3.1 shall ocour apd shall be
deemed 10 octur in the order therein set out without any act or formality, cach of Canare and Caza shall be required
o make, do and execute or cause and procure to be mede, done and executed sll such fisther acts, deeds,
agreements, transfers, assurances, instruments or docutmenta as may be required to further documents or evidence
any of the transactions or events sct cut in section 3.1, including without limitation, any resclutions of directors
authorizing the issuc, transfor or purchase for cancellation of shores, eny shers transfer powers evidencing the
transfer of shares and any receipt therefor, any promissory notes and ipts therefor and any necessary addition 10
ar deletions from share registers.
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ARTICLE 4
4.1 Removed by consent
ARTICLE §
CERTIFICATES
5.1 Entitlement to Share Certificates

As soon as practicable afier the Effective Date, Caza or Canarc shall deliver to the Transfer Agent
for the benefit of holders of Canarc Cormnen Shares, share certificates representing in the aggregate the Caza
Common Shares to which such holders are entitled (being a8 maximum of 11,935,751 Common Shares of Caza)

following the Arrangement and shall defiver soch certificates to the Transfer Agent to be delivered to such holders.

in accordance with the terms hereof,
52 Caza Common Share Certificates

As saon as practicable afler the Effective Date, Caza shafl cause to be issued to the registered
bolders of Caza Comunon Shares at the close of business oo the Dividend Record Date or as otherwise determined
by the TSX, share certificates representing in the aggregate the Ceza Common Shares to which such holders aro
entitled and shall canse such certibeates to be deliversd or matled 1o such holders in accordance wit the tartns
thereof.

53 Dividends and Distributions

All dividends paid and distributions made in respect of Caza Common Shares efter the Effective
Date but prior to a certificats therefore being delivered to a Shareholder in accordance in paragraph 5.2 and 5.4,
shall be paid to the Transfer Agent to be held by the Transfer Agent in trust for such Shareholder. The Trensfer
Agent shall pay and deliver to any such Sharehoider, as soon a3 reasonably practicable after application therefor is
made by such Sharsholder to the Transfer Agent in such form as the Transfer Agent may reasonably require, suck
dividends, distributions. cesh and interest accrued, not of §EroEEw and other takes, to which such Shareholder is
entitled.

54 Use of Postal Services
Any share certificate or cheque which any person is entitled to receive in accardance with this Plan of Asrangement
shalt (unless the Transfer Agent shall have received instructions to the contrary from or on behalf of such person
prior to the Effective Date) be forwarded by first class mait, postage prepaid, or ia the case of postal disruption
Canada, by such other means as the Tranafer Agent may deem prudent.
ARTICLE 6
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

6.1 Amendment

This Plan of Arrangement may, at any time and from time to time before or after the holding of the

Meeting bt not later than the Effective Date, be amended in a manner not materially prejudicisl to the sharchalders
of Canarc by written agreement of Canarc and Caza without, gubject to applicable law, further notice to or

' msuthorization on the part of the shareholders of Canarc for any reason whatsoever.
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6.2 Termination

This Plan of Arrangement may, at any tmé before of after the holding of the Meeting but no later
than the Effective Date, be terminated by the board of directors of Canars without further notice to, or action oa the
part of, its sharehclders.

iwﬁqﬁwamz.um&nwngu:a.o_..rngomnwnnmﬁauﬁﬁhﬁsgm_ﬁomgng
621 EEnnﬁEERuuq:manEnnr if any, is specifically provided for by Court order in

respect of Canarc C diatzly prior to the Effective Dale, in the event
any shareholders have nﬂﬂﬁi&qﬂéom&ﬂnﬂr or

622  if prior to the Effective Date there is a material change in the business, operations,
properties, nssets, liabilities or condition, financial or otherwise, of Canarc and ity
subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or in Caza, or any change in general economije conditions,
interest rates or any outbreak of material escalation in, or the cessation of, bostilities or
any other calamity or crisis, or there should develop, cccur or come into cffect any
ocourrence which has a materia) effect on the financial markets of Canada and the board
of directors of Canare determines in its sole judgment that it would be inadvisable in such
cimumstances for Canaro to proceed with the Amrapgement.

63 Effect of Termination |

Upon the terminstion of this Plan of Amangement pursuant to section 6.2 hereof, no party shatl
have any liabitity or firther obligation to any other party hereunder.
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APPENDIX I - Draft Court Order

PACliexts\L-SedaCanare KI\PlanArrang angAgmiAm-
AgFINAL 866

No.
VANCOTIVER REGISTRY

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

IN THE MATTER. THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT, SBC 2002, ¢. 57
AND
IN THE MATTER OF AN ARRANGEMENT QONCERNING CANARC RESOURCE CORF.

ORDER

BEFORE JUSTICEMASTER ) MONDAY, THE 12® DAY

)
) OF MAY, 2008

THE PEITTION of the petitioner coming on for hearing 4t Vaneoover, British Columbia on the 12 th day of
May, 2008, and on hearing Robert 1. Holmes, ua:._..b.E for the petitioner and on readiog the affidavit of
sworn in this proceeding;

L. THIS COURT ORDERS that notice of the Petition and all matorials fled herein be deemed to have been

effectively given by the petitioner having mailed of delivered to its shareholders, directars and auditors, in

with the Busi Corporations Act (B.C.} and its articles, capies of the Notice of Mecting,

Information Circular, Amrangement Agreement, Proxy and Notice of Hearing in the forms attached as

Exhibits *A", "B", "C" to the Affidavit of (collectively the "Notice Documents"), on or about

and that such notice constitutes good and sufficient service in respect of the Notice

Documents, the petition and the supporting affidavit bercin on cach of them, such that no other form of

service peed by made and oo other material need be sarved on any of them in respect of these proceedings,

and such service shall be deemed to bave been effective on the seventh day ext following the dale of
mailing of the Notice Documents.

2. AND THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that the accidemal omission to give ootice of the Notice
Documents, of the pan-receipt of such notice by any persons specified in paragraph 2, shall not invalidate
any yesotution passed of proceeding taken at the April 29, 2008 Annual and Special Meeting of the
shareholders of Canarc Resource Corp. (the “Meeting™), nor shell it invalidate these proceedings or aoy
Order made herein
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3. AND THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS AND DECLARES that the arrengement as amended (the
“Arrangement”) was duly passed at the Meeting, having received more than the required 2/3 of the voles
cast by shareholders of Canare Resonrce Corp. voting on the resolution at the Mecting.

4. AND THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that the time for hearing the Petition be abridged and set for
May [2, 2008,

3. ANT} THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS thal soy sharcholder of the petitioner may appeer on tha
application to this Court proposed to be made on May 12, 2008 for approvel of the Amangement, provided
such shareholder has filed with this Count and/or served on the solisitors for the petitioner before 11:00
am on May 7, 2008 an Appesrance setting cul such shareholder's address for service and copies of any
evidence or material which such shareholder intends to present to the Court,

3 >ZU.H.EmBsﬂﬁﬂcﬂdﬁwogﬁmcﬂnﬁagoﬁgggﬂggsﬁnm&?
and each securitybolder of the Petittoncr, and that each of the Petitioner and its securityholders, end Caza
Gold Corp., be bound by such Amangement on and subject io the terms and conditions set forth ip the Plan

of A gement and the Arrang) t Agresment.

7. AND THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that the Petifioner shall be at liberty to apply for such firther
Orders a3 it may deem necessary or desirable in connection with the Armangement.

°  BY THE COURT

DEPUTY DISTRICT REGISTRAR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Counsel for the Petitioner
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No.S063787
Vancouver Registry

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

IN THE MATTER OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATIONS ACT,
SBC2002,c. 57

IN'THE MATTER OF AN ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN PETAQUILLA MINERALS LTD.
AND PETAQUILLA COPPER LTD.

ORDER

Holmes & King
Barristera & Solicitors
1300 - 111 1 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, B.C.

V6E 4M3
[(504)681-1310]

Attention: Rabert D. Holmes

Fils No. 20301/201
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“Shingy, NEWS RELEASE
Tos " ¢ Caza Gold Retires $300,000 Debt Financing;

Options Los Angeles Gold Properties in Chihuahua, Mexico;
Raises $1,155,000 Equity Financing;
Drills Los Arrastres Properties in Guanajuato, Mexico

Vancouver, Canada — September 29, 2008 — Caza Gold Corp. announces that the $300,000 debt
financing raised late last year for working capital has been retired. The financing was in the form of a
demand loan bearing simple interest at 9% per annum. Nine of the 16 lenders were either management or
directors of either Caza or Canarc Resource Corp.

The demand loan was retired earlier this year by the re-payment of $20,000 and the issuance of 2.8
million units of Caza Gold Corp. priced at $0.10 per unit. Each unit consisted of one commeon share and a
half warrant, each full warrant entitling the holder to purchase one additional common share at $0.12
within an 18 month period.

Caza is also pleased to announce that it has acquired an option to purchase a 100% interest in the Los
Angeles mineral properties (160 hectares) located in the Ocampo gold district of Chihuahua State,
Mexico. The purchase price is US$1 million, to be made in a schedule of escalating cash payments over a
4 year period, subject to a 3% NSR production royalty.

The Los Angeles properties are strategically located between the 3.5 million oz {gold equivalent) Pinos
Altos gold mine now under development by Agnico-Eagle to the north, and the 6.2 million oz {gold
equivalent) producing Ocampo gold mine owned by Gammeon Gold to the south.

The properties cover a strong, north-west trending, gold-bearing quartz vein-stockwork zone that can be
traced for over 2 km but has never been drilled. Caza plans to commence a Phase 1 surface exploration
program of geological mapping, geochemical sampling and backhole trenching in the 4" Quarter, 2008.

Caza Gold successfully closed a $1,155,000 equity financing in the 3™ Quarter 2008, in the form of a
private placement of 4.62 million units at $0.25 per unit, each unit consisting of one common share and
one half share purchase warrant. Each full warrant can be exercised to purchase an additional common
share for $0.35 within an 18 month period.

A Phase 1 drilling program was undertaken this summer on the Los Arrastres properties in Guanajuato,
Mexico. Preliminary results confirm the presence of anomalous gold in each of the three mineralized
zones drilled but not in economic quantities. Final results are still being interpreted and will be reported
in the 4" Quarter 2008.

Caza Gold Corp. is an unlisted gold exploration company that was spun out of Canarc Resource Corp. to

Canarc shareholders in order to facilitate the financing, acquisition and exploration of strategic gold
properties in Mexico.

CAZA GOLD CORP.

Bradford Cooke
Chairman and CEO




For more information, please comtact Gregg Wilson Toll free: 877-684-9700, tel: (604) 685-9700, fax: (604) 685-9744, email
owilson@eanare.net .

CAUTIONARY DISCLAIMER — FORWARD LOCKING STATEMENTS

Cerigin statements contained herein regarding the Company and its operations constitute “forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the
United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, All statements that arc not listorical facs, including without limitation
statements regarding future estimates, plans, objectives, essumptions or expectations of future performance, are "forward-looking statements™,
We caution you that such “forward locking statements” involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that conld cause actual results and
future events to differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Such risks and uncertainties include fluctuations in precious metal
prices, unpredictable results of exploration activities, uncertainties inherent in the estimation of mineral reserves and resources, fluctuations in the
costs of goods and services, problems associated with exploration and mining operations, chenges in legal, social or political conditions in the
jurisdictions where the Company operates, lack of approprinte funding and other risk factors, os discussed in the Company’s filings with
Canadian and American Securities regulatory agencies, Resource and production goals and forecasts may be based on data insufficient to support
them. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation to update any forward-looking statements. We seck saft harbour.
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ITEM 3.

ITEM 4.
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Material Change Report

NAME AND ADDRESS OF COMPANY

Caza Gold Corp.
301 —~ 700 West Peader Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C tG8

DATE OF MATERIAL CHANGE
Septermber 29, 2008

NEWS RELEASE

September 29, 2008

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL CHANGE

Caza Gold Corp. (“Caza™}, announced that it has retired a $300,000 debt financing
raised late last year for working capital. The financing was in the form of a demand
loan bearing simple interest at 9% per annum. The demand loan was retired by the
re-payment of $20,000 and the issuance of 2.8 million units of Caza priced at $0.10
per unit. Each unit consisted of one common share and one half warrant. Each full
warrant entitles the holder to purchase one additional common share at $0.12 per
share on or before January 31, 2010..

Caza also announced that it has acquired an option to purchase a 100% interest in the
Los Angeles mineral properties (160 hectares) located in the Ocampo gold district of
Chihuahua State, Mexico. The purchase price is USS1 million, to be made in a
schedule of escaloting cash payments over a 4 year period, subject to a 3% NSR
production royalty.

The Los Angeles preperties are strategically located between the 3.5 million oz (gold
equivalent) Pinos Altos gold mine now under development by Agnico-Eagle to the
north, and the 6.2 million oz (gold equivalent} preducing Ocampo gold mine owned
by Gammon gold 1o the south. Caza plans to commence a Phase 1 surface
exploration program of geological mapping, geochemical sampling and backhoe
trenching in the 4™ Quarter, 2008.

Caza also announced that it has successfully closed a $1,155,000 equity financing in
the 3™ Quarter 2008. The equity financing took the form of a private placement of
4.62 million units at $0.25 per unit, each unit consisting of one common share and
one half share purchase warrant. Each one full warrant can be exercised to purchase
one additional commeon share at a price of $0.35, on ot before March 29, 2010.

Po\Clienis\-Sedar\ CazaGold\Wew Release\ 2008\F 5 1-102F M CRsepr 29.doc

ITEM 5.

ITEM 6.

ITEM7.

ITEM 8.

FULL DESCRIPTION OF MATERIAL CHANGE
5.1 Full Description of Material Change

As disclosed by the Company in its September 29, 2008 News Release, a copy of
which is attached hereto, the Company is an unlisted gold exploration company that
was spun out of Canare Resource Corp. to Canare shareholders in order to facilitate
the financing, acquisition and exploration of strategic gold properties in Mexico.
Also as disclosed in Caza’s September 29, 2008 News Release, Caza has retired
$300,000 in debt financing raised late last year for working capital by way of
repayment of $20,000 and the issuance of 2.8 million units to the lenders. Nine of the
16 lenders were either management or directors of either Caza or Canarc Resource
Corp.

Caza has also acquired an option to purchase a 100% interest in the Los Angeles
mineral properties located in the Ocampo gold district of Chihauhau State, Mexico
for a purchase price of USSI million, to be made in a schedule of escalating cash
paymenis over a 4 year period, subject to & 3% NSR production royalty. 515,000 of
the purchase price was payable on signing the Letter of Intent (paid), as well as
$20,000 in shares (as yet to be paid}.

Caza has successfully closed a $1,155,000 equity financing on September 29, 2008
(the Company’s 3™ Quarter 2008) in the form of a private placement of 4.62 million
units at $0.25 per unil, each unit consisting of one common share and one half share
purchase warmant. Each full warramt can be exercised to purchase one additional
common share for $0.35 on or before Mareh 29, 2010,

A Phase 1 drilling program was undertaken this summer on the Los Arrastres
properties in Guanajuato, Mexico. Preliminary results confirm the presence of
anomalous gold in each of the three mineralized zones drilled but not in economic
quantities. Final results are still being interpreted and will be reported in the 4™
Quarter 2008.

5.2 Dsclosure for Restructuring Transactions

N/A

RELIANCE ON SUBSECTION 7.1(2) OR (3) OF NATIONAL INSTRUMENT
51-102

N/A
OMITTED INFORMATION
N/A

EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Contact: Philip Yee
Telephone: (604) 685-9700
DATE OF REPORT

DATED at Vancouver, BC, this 2 day of October, 2008,

CAZA GOLD CORP.

NEWS RELEASE
Caza Gold Retires $300,000 Debt Financing;
Options Los Angeles Gold Properties in Chihuahua, Mexico;
Raises §1,155,000 Equity Financing;
Drills Los Arrastres Properties in Guanajuato, Mexico

Vancouver, Canada ~ Septernber 29, 2008 — Caza Gold Corp. announces that the $300,000 debt
financing raised late last year for working capital has been retired. The financing was in the form of a
demand loan bearing simple interest at 9% per annum. Nine of the 16 lenders were either management or
directors of either Caza or Canarc Resource Corp.

The demand loan was retired earlier this year by the re-payment of $20,000 and the issuance of 2.8
million units of Caza Gold Corp. priced at $0.10 per unit. Each unit consisted of one comrmen share and a
hatf warrant, each full watrant entitling the holder to purchase one additional common share at 50.12
within an 18 month period.

Caza is also pleased to announce that it has acquired an option to purchase a 100% interest in the Los
Angeles mineral properties (160 hectares) located in the Ocampe geld district of Chihuabua State,
Mexico. The puschase price is USE1 million, to be made in a schedule of escalating cash payments over a
4 year period, subject to a 3% NSR production reyalty.

The Los Angeles properties are strategically located between the 3.5 million oz (gold equivalent) Pinos
Altos gold mine now under develapnient by Agnico-Eagle to the north, and the 6.2 million o0z {gold
equivalent) producing Ocampo gold mine ewned by Gammon Gold to the south.

The properties cover a strong, north-west trending, gold-bearing quartz vein-stockwork zone that can be
traced for over 2 km but has never been dritled. Caza plans to commence a Phase | surface exploration
pragram of geological mapping, geechemical sampling and backhole trenching in the 4® Quarter, 2008,

Caza Gold successfully closed a $1,155,000 squity financing in the 7™ Quarter 2008, in the form of a
private placement of 4.62 million units at $0.25 per unit, cach unit consisting of one common share and
one half share purchase warrant. Each full warrant can be exercised to purchase an additionzl commen
share for §0.35 within an 18 month peried.

A Phase | drilling program was undertaken this summer on the Los Arrastres properties in Guanajuato,
Mexico, Preliminary results confirm the presence of anomalous gold in each of the three mineralized
zones drilled but not in economic quantities. Final results are still being interpreted and will be reported
in the 4% Quarter 2008.

Caza Gold Corp. is en unlisted gold exploration company that was spun out of Canare Resource Corp. to
Canare shareholders in order to facilitate the financing, acquisition and exploration of strategic gold
properties in Mexico.

CAZA GOLD CORP,

Per:

Bredford Cooke
Chainnan end CEO




For more infortnaflon, pleas confoct Oregg Wilron Toli free: 877-684-9700, wl: (604) 683-9700, fex: (604) 6839744, wmatl
awiiion@egnarcinet .

NA| 1 IMER — LOOKING
Ceneln stateraents contsined herein regarding the Company and its operations constitute “formardooking setemenis”™ within the memning of ths
United Statey 1:<sn Securities Litigation wu_,s.a Act of 1993, >= statcmenty that we aot historical _.unn inclading without Timitation
g fture esti plans, obj igns of fiture perf Incking

We cautian Eu that mch ~forward Iooking -ﬂﬁuﬂ.ﬁx ivotve. I.aﬂ_ and vninown risks and uncertaintics n.-ﬂ tould cause scinal resolis un_
fiture events to differ materinlly from those saticipated in such stateinents, Such risks and oncertainties include [uctustions in precious meta)
prices, wnprzdictable resulis n:xu_ui_g uﬂ?.:ﬁ uncertaintics inhereni in the estimation of mineral reserves and resonrees, fluctations in the
cotts of goods snd services, p d with icn and mining operat! cheriges L [egal, seclal or politleal conditions In the.
jurisdictions where the oo_._._ss.c. operntes, lock of -Sqau_._gn funding and cthet rlsk feciors, s discussed in the Company’s filings with
Canadian and Amcrican Sccuritics regulasiory agencics. Resource and producticn goals and forecaits wxy be based on duts insuffieient o support
them. The Company expressty disclaims oy obligation to update any farward-ooking cistements. We seek safe herbour.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorporation;: November 15, 2007)

Six Months ended June 30, 2008

(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

Notice to Readers of the lnterim Unaudited Consolidated Financlal Statements
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

The interim unaudited consolidated financial statements of Caza Gold Corp. {the “Company”) for the six
months ended hune 30, 2008 (“Financial Statements™) including the comparative financial statements at
December 31, 2007 have been prepared by management, The Financial Statements are stated in terms of
Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated, and are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles.




CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: November 1§, 2007)
Consolidated Balance Sheets

{Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: November 15,2007)
Consolidated Statements of Operations
{Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008
Expenses:
Corporate development $ 4,405 $ 19,000
Employes remuneration (Note 10} 14,537 15,419
Foreign exchange gain (1.128) {7T84)
Legal 30,840 78,765
{ffice and sundry £,838 11,587
Loss before the undernoted {54492) {123,847)
Interess expense {6,957) {13761
Interest and other income 500 500
Less for the period s 60,949 $ {137.208)
Basic and dilotcd loss per share s oog 3 {0.3%)
Weighled sverage axmber of shares outstanding 788,386 194,243

June 3}, December 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 3 436,622 $ 299,810
Reccivables and prepaids 116,249 424
552,871 300234
Noncurrent Assets
Mingral properties (Note 6} 760,741 -
Equipment {Note T 3,157 -
763,898 -
$ 1,316,769 3 300,234
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics 5 178,864 $ 26,740
Notes payabie (Note B) 314,723 304,962
591,587 327,702
Sharcholders® Equity
Share capital (Nete 9) 301,284 1
Comrnon shares subscribed (Note 9) 550,000 -
Deficit (128,10}) {27,469}
713,181 {27.468)
§ 1,316,769 b3 300,234

Nature of operations (Notc 1)
Commitiments and contingencies (Nate 6)
Subsequent events {Notes § and 9)

Refer (o the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial st
Approved by the Directors:
#4/ Bradford Cooke /st Philip Yee

Director Director

Refer to the ageotipanying notes to the consolidaied financial statements.




CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: November i3, 2007)
Consolidated Starements of Shareholders’ Equity
{Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

Six monibs ended

From November 15, 2007 10

June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
Sharey Amount Shares Amoun
Common shares:
Balance, beginning of period 100 s 1 100 1
Issued:

Plan of arrancement (Note 5} 14,346,800 301,283 - -
Balance. end of period 14,346,500 301,284 100 t
Common shares subscribed:

Balance. beginning of period -

Private placement {Note 9) 550,004
Balance, erxd of period SR0,000
Deliele:

Balance, beginning of period (27,469)

Plan of arrangement (Mote 5) 36,575 -

Loss for the period (137,208) {27.469)
Balance, end of period (128,102) (27.469)
Total Sharchelders’ Eqaity 3 713,182 (27.468)

Refer to the a¢ panying notes to the

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorperation: November 15, 2007}
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{Unaudited — Prepared by Management)}

Three Months Ended

Slx Months Ended

Jure 30, 2068 Jane 30, 2008
Cash provided from {ased for):
Operations:
Loss for the period H (60.949) 5 {137,208)
ltems ot involving cash:

Accrued interest on noics pavable 6,958 13,761

(53.921) (123,447}
Changes in non-cash working capiial ilems:
Reccivables and prepaids (2,033} (3.073)
Accoumts pavable and accrued liabilities {B.317) {2,331}
(64.341) (128,851}
Financing:

Subseaiption for comumon shares 550,000 550,000
Tnvesting:

Acquisiticn of subsidiary (Notc 3) (284,337) (284337
Inerease In eash and cash equivalents 201322 136,812
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the petiod 235300 299.810
Cash znd gash equivalcnts, end of pertod 3 436,622 3] 436,612
Non-cash finanelng and investlag activitles:

Shares issued pursuant o the plan of arrangement (Note 5) 3 301283 3 301,283
Deficit adjustment for acquisition s 36,575 3 36,575

Refer to the accompanying notes to the consofidated financial statements.




CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Dats of incorporation; November 15, 2007}

Consolidated Statements of Mineral Property Expenditures
{Unaudited - Prepared by Management}

CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorperation: November 15, 2007}
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Six Months ended June 30, 2008

(Unaudited — Prepared by Manag )

Los Santlago
Arrastres Santlago Fraction Other Total

Acquisitton Costs:

Balance, beginning of period s - 3 - 3 - 3 - % -
Plan of arranpement (Note 5) 169,379 127,659 7,603 15,506 320,147
Balance, ending of period 169379 127659 7,603 15,506 320,147
Deferred Exploration Expenditures:

Balance, beginning of period - - . N
Plan of amang: Nole 5} 339.840 50,754 - 440.594
Balance, ending of period 389,840 50,754 449,594
Mincral properties, ending of period $ 559219 % 178413 § 1603 § 15506 § 760,741

Refer 10 the accompanying notes 10 the consolidated financial statements.

1. Nature of Operations

Caza Gold Corp. {the “Company™) was incorporated on Navember 15, 2(H)7 under the laws of British Columbia.
The Company was previously a wholly-owned subsidiary of Canarc Resource Cotp. (“Canare™ until the Plan of
Asrang {the “Arrang ") between the Company and Canarc which became effective as of June 25, 2008,

Mote 5 provides further details of the Arrangement,

The Company is in the minerat exploration husiness and has not yet dctermined whether its mineral properties
comtain reserves that are economically recoverable. The recoverability of amounts capitalized for mineta] properties
is dependent upon the ability of the Company to amange appropriate finacing as needed, the discovery of
ecenomically recoverable reserves in its mineral propesties, the development of its properties, confirmation of the
Company’s interest in the underiying properties (Note 6), the receipt of necessary permitting and upon future
profitable production or proceeds from the disposition thereef.

The Company has incurred significant operating losses and has an accumutated deficit of $128,102 at June 30, 2008.
Furthermore, the Company has working capital deficiency of $40,716 as a1 June 30, 2008, which is not sufTicient te
achieve the Company’s planned business objectives. These financial statements have been prepared on a going
concem basis, which assumes the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal eourse of business.
The Company's ability to continue a3 a going cotcern is dependent on the continued financial suppont from its
sharehoiders and other related parties, the ability of the Company to raise equity financing, and the attainment of
profitable operations, external financings and further share issuances te meet the Company’s ligbilities as (hey
become payable. These financial statements do not include any adjustments to the recoverability and classification
of recorded assel amounts and classification of liakilities that might be necessary, should the Cempany be unable to
continue as a going concer,

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of presentation:

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholiy-owned
subsidiary, Minera Canarc de Mexico S.A. de C.V.

All sighificant intercompany transactions and balances have been ¢liminated.

b Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-tenn liquid investments having terms to maturity when
acquired of three months or less.  Short-term investments having terms to maturity when acquired of

greater than three months and less than one year arc included in marketable sccurities or other investrents
as appropriate.

Caza Gold Corp Pago




CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
Six Months ended Junc 30. 2008

{Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

{c}

(d}

(e)

Slgnificant Accounting Policies  {continued}
Mineral propenics:

All costs related to investments in mineral properiies are capitalized on a property-by-property basis. Such
costs include mineral property acquisition costs and exploration and development expenditures, net of any
recoveries. The costs related to a property from which there is production. tegether with the costs of
mining equipment, will be amortized using the unit-of-production method. When there is littie prospect of
further work on 2 property being carried omt by the Company or its pariners or when a property is
abandoned or when the capilalized costs are net considered 1o be economically recoverable, the refated
property costs are written down to the amount recoverable.

The amounts shown for mineral properties represent costs incurred 1o date, less recoverics and write-
downs, and are not intended to reflect present or future values.

Equipment:

Equipment is recorded at cost and. for that equipment subject to amortization, the Company uses the
declining balance method at ratcs varying from 10% to 30% annually. Amortization on equipient used
direcily on exploration projects is included in mineral properties.

Asset retirement obligations:

Any statutory, cantractuzl or other legal obligations related 1o the retiretnent of tangible long-lived assets
when such obligations are incurred, are rceogmized if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made.
These obligations are measured initially at fair value and the resulting costs capitalized to the carrying
value of the related asset. In subsequent periods. the Kability is adjusted for any changes in the amount or
timing and for the discounting of the underlying future cash flows. The au_u__u__u& asset relirement cost is
ized to operations over the tife of the asset. The Company assessed its mineral properties, and based
upon such assessments, there were no known material asset retirement obligations as at June 30, 2008.

Eamings per share:

Basic carnings per share is computed by dividing the earnings available to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the period, For all periods presented, eamings
available 10 common sharcholders equals the reported earnings. The Company uses the treasury stock
methed for calculating diluted eamings per share. Under the treasury stock method. the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding used for the calculation of diluted exmings per share assumes that
the proceeds 1o be received on the exercise of dilutive share options and warrants are used to repurchase
common shares at the average markel price during the period. In the Company’s case, diluted eamnings per
sharc presented is the same as basic earnings per share as the effect of outstanding options and warrants in
the eamings per share caleutation would be anti-dilutive.

Caza Gold Comp. Papgc®

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporalion: November 15, 2007}
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Six Months ended Junc 30, 2008

{Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

2.

(8}

h)

0}

@

Siguificant Accounting Policies  {centinued)
Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial IS FequITes I ent 10 make estimates that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant
areas requiring the use of management estimates rclatc to fair values and allccations in business
combinations, impainment of mineral properties, determination of reclamation obligations, and valuation
allowances for future income tax assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair values of the Company's cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, and notes payable approximate their camrying values due to the short terms to matuarity.

Vartable interest entities:

Consolidation principles apply to entities that meet the definition of a variable intcrest entity ("VIE™). An
enterprise holding other than a voling interest in a VIE could, subject to certain conditions, be required to
consolidate the VIE if it is considered its primary bencficiary whereby it would absorb the majority of the
VIE's expecied losses, receive the majority of its expected residual returns, or both. The Company dees
net have any VIE's.

Financial instruments:
{1} CiCA Handbook Section 3855 — Financial Instrumerits — Recognition and Measurement:

The standard addresses the classification, recognition and measurement of {inancial instruments in
the financial statements. This standard requires all financial instruments within iss scope,
including derivatives, to be included in the Company's balance sheet and measured either at fair
value on initial recognition or, in certain eircumstances when fair value may not be considered
most relevant, at cosl or amortized cost. Changes in fair valus are recognized in the statements of
cperations.

All financial assets and liabililics are recognized when the entity becomes a party te the contract
creating the siem. A3 such, any outstanding financial assets and liabilities a1 the cfTective date of
adoption are recognized and measured in accordance with the new requitements as if these
requirements had always been in effect. Any changes 1o the fair values of assets and liabilities
prior 10 the adoption dale are recognized by adjusting accumuliated other comprehensive income,

Cuaza Gold Corp. Page 9




CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Six Months ended June 30, 2008

(Unaudited — Prepared hy Mar

1% 1}

2 Slgnificant Accounting Policies  {continued)

G4} Financial instruments:  {continued)

(@

(i)

{iii}

CICA Handbock Section 3855 — Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement;
{continued}

All financial instruments are classified info one of the following five categeries: held for trading,
maturity. loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, or cther financial
liabilities. Initial and subsequent mezsurement and recognirion of changes in the vatue of
financial instruments depends an their initial classification:

. Held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, and other financial liabilities are
initially measured a1 fair value and subsequently measured at amertized cost.
Auttortization of premiums or discounts and losses duc 1o iinpairment are included in
cument period net camings;

. Available-for-sale financial assets are mwasured at fair vatue based on quoted market
prices. Ilnvesunent in equity instrusnents classified as available-for-sale that does not
have a quoted markel price in an active market is measured at ¢ost. Revaluaticn gains
and losses are included in other comprehensive income until the asset is removed from
the balance sheet either by disposition or permanent impainnent at which time the
realized gain or loss is transferred 10 net eamings;

- Held for trading financial instruments are measured at tair value. All gains and losses are
included in net carnings in the period in which they arise; and

. All detivative financial instrunents are classified as held for trading financial instruments
and are measwred a1 fair value, even when they are pan of a hedging relationship. All
gains and losses are included in net eamings in the period in which they arise.

CICA Handbook Section 3865 — Hedging:

This new standard specifics the circumstances under which hedge accounting is penmissible and
how hedge accounting may be performed. The Company currently does not have any hedges.

CICA Handbook Section 1530 - Comprehensive Income:

Comprchensive income is the change in sharcholders’ equity during a period from transactions
and other events from non-owner sources. This standard requires certain gains and losses that
would otherwise be recorded as part of net eamings to be presented in other “comprehensive
income™ until it is considered appropriate ta recognize into net eamings. This standard requires
the presentation of comprehensive ingome, and its companents in a separate financial statement
that is displayed with the same prominence as theother financial statements.

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation; November |5, 2007}
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Six Months ended June 30, 2008

(Unaudited - Prepared by M

gement)

1, Sigaificant Accounting Policies  (continued)

(k) MNew Accounting Pronouncements:

)

(ii}

(iii}

Capital disclosures:

In February 2007, the CICA issued I{andbock Section § 535, “Capital Disclosures™, which requires
the disclosure of both qualitative and quantitative information that procides users of financial
statements with information 10 cvaluate the entity’s cbjectives, policies and procedures for
managing capital. The new section is elTective for years beginning on or after October 1, 2007,
Mote 3 provides further details.

Financial instruments:

In Febnuary 2007, the CICA issued two new standards. Section 3862 “Financial Instruments
Disclosures” and Section 3863 “Financial Instruments Presentation”. These sections replace the
existing Section 3861, “Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation”. Scclion 3862
provides users with information to evaluate the significance of the financial instruments of the
entity's financial position and performances, naturc and extent of risks arising from financial
instruments, and how the entity manages those risks. Section 3863 deals with the classification of
financial instruments, related interests, dividends, losses and gains, and the circumstances in
which financial assets and financial Habilites are offset. The new sections are cffective for years
beginning on or after October 1, 2007. Nete 4 provides further details,

Goodwill and intangible assets:

In February 2008, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3064 “Goodwill and intangible assets”,
replacing Section 3062, “Goodwill and other intangible assets” and Section 3450, *'Research and
vent costs”.  This section ecstablises standards for the recognition, measurement,
itial recogrition and of intangible
assets by profit-oriented enterprises. Standards concerning goodwill are unchanged from the
standards included in the previous Section 3062. The new section is effective for years beginning
on or after October |, 2008, The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this new
section on its consolidated financial statements.

Caza Guld Com.

Page 101

Caza Gald Com.

Page L1




CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staternents
Six Months ended lune 30, 2008

{Unaudiled - Prepared by Management)

2. Sigeificant Accounting Pollcies  {continued)

{k) New accounting pronounceiments:  (continued)

{iv}

)

Intemational Financizl Reporting Standards (“IFRS™):

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (*AcSB®) published a new strategic plan that
will significantly affect financial reporting requirements for Canadian companies. The AcSB
strategie plan outlines the convergence of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles with
IFRS over an expected five ycar transitional period. ln February 2008 the AcSB announced that
2011 is the changeover date for publicly-listed companies 1o use IFRS, replacing Canada's own
generalty accepted accounting principles. The date is for intarim and annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January |, 2011. The transition date of January 1,
2011 will require the restaternent for comparative purposes of amounls reported by the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2010. While the Company has begun assessing the adoption of
IFRS for 2011, the financial reporting impact of the transition to IFRS cannot be reasonably
estimated at this fime.

Going concern:

In June 2007, the CICA amended Handbook Section 1400, “General Standards of Financial
Statement Presentation”, which requires management to make an assessment of the Company's
ability to continue as a goingconcern. When financial slatements are net prepared on a going-
concem basis. that fact shall be disclosed together with the hasis on which the financial statements
are preparcd and the reason why the Company is not considered a going-concern.  The new
section is effective for years beginning on or after January |, 2008, The Coempany does not expect
the adoption of the standards 10 result in any material changes to the Company’s financial
siatermnents,

kX Manzgemeat of Capltal

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are 10 safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 23 a going
concent in order 1o pursue the development and exploration of its mincra) propertics and to maintain a Mexible
capital structure which optimizes the costs of capitat at an acceptable risk.

The Company considers the compenents of shareholders’ equity, as well as its cash and equivalents and noles
payable as capital. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to them in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underying assets. In order to mainain or adjust the capita)
structure, the Company may issue equily, issue debt, acquire or dispose assets, and / or adjust the zmount of
investments. The Company is not subject to extemally-imposed capital requirements.

There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the six months ended June 30,

2008,
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: Nevember | 5, 2007)
Noles to the Consolidated Financial Staternents
Six Months ended June 30, 2008

{Unaudited - Prepared by Mamagcment)

4.

Management of Financial Risk

The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial instrument related risks, including credit risk,
liquidity risk, and market risk which inchedes commodity price risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The
types of risk exposure and the way in which such expesure is managed are provided ns follows:

12}

&

()

Credit risk;

Credit risk is the risk of polential loss to the Company if the counterparty to a financia) instrument fails to
mee its contractual ohligations.

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable 1o its liquid financial assets including cash and cash
equivalents. The Company Jimits exposure 1o credil risk on fiquid finzncial assets through maintaining its
cash and cash equivalents with high-credit quality financial institutions. The Company does not have
financial assety that are invested in asset backed commetcial paper.

Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able 1o meet its financial abligatiens as they become

due.

The Company ensures that there is sulficient capital in order to meet shor tern business Tequirements, after
taking into account the Company's holdings of cash and cash equivalents, The Company befieves that these
sources will be sufficient to cover the likely short term cash requirements and commitments,

Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics are due within the current operating peried,
Market risk:

The significant market risk exposures to which the Company is exposed are commodity price risk, loreign
exchange risk, and interest rate risk.

(i} Commodity price risk:

The value of the Company's mineral praperties is dependent on the price of go¥d and the outlook
for this precious mineral. The Company does not have any hedging or ather commodity based
tisks respecting its operations,

Macket prices for this precious metal historically have fuctuated widely and are affected by
numerous factors ocutside of the Company's control, including, but not limited 1o, levels of
worldwide production, short-lerm changes in supply and demand, industrial and retail demand,
central bank lending, and forward sales by producers and speculators. The Company has elected
not lo actively manage its commodity price risk.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Six Menths ended June 30, 2008

(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

4. Management of Financial Risk  (continved)
(c) Market risk:  (continued)
{ii} Foreign exchange risk:

The Company’s mineral properties which are tocated in Mexico would subjeet it to foreign
currency fuctuations including cumency transaction risk and currency translation risk.

Held in Méxican Pesos
(stated in Canadian dollars

Financial assets 5§ 170,655
Financial liabilitics (254455
Net financial liabilities 3 [GERILS

Based upon the above net exposure as at June 30, 2008 and assuming all other variables remain
constant, 2 10% depreciation or appreciation of the Canadian dollar relative to the Mexican pesos
could result in a decreasefincrease of $8,380 in the Company’s net eamings.

The Company has not entered into any agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge possible
cumency risks at this time.

(iii) Interest rate risk;
In respect of financial assets, the Company's policy is to invest cash at floating rates of intetest in

cash equivalents, in order 10 mnaintain liquidity, while achieving a satisfactory return. Fluctuations
in interest rates impact on the value of cash equivalents.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements
Six Months ended June 30, 2008

(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

5, Plan of Arrangement

On June 25, 2008, the Company clesed the Arrangement with Canare whereby approximaiely 83%% of Canare’s
interest in the Company was distnbuted 10 the shareholders of Canarc. Under the Arrangement, Canarc transferred
all its interest in its wholty-owned Mexican subsidiary, Minera Canarc de Mexico S.A. de C.V., which holds all the
fights io the Mexican gold expleration properties {Note 6} ic the Company in retum for 14,346,300 shares of the
Company, of which Canarc distributed 11,950,750 shares of the Company by way of a dividend in kind to Canare’s
shareholders on the basis of one share of the Company lor every six shares of Canarc held by Canarc’s shareholders
as of the dividend record date.  Canarc continwes to hold 2,396,150 shares of the Company representing
approximately a 17% interest in the Company, The property rights which were transferred from Canarc to the
Company include Los Atrastres, Santiago and Santiago Fraction properties.

The follpwing table sets forth a preliminary allocation of the purchase price 1o assets and liabilities acquired, based
on preliminary estimates of fair value. Final valuation estimates of mineral praperties, contingengies and future
income tax assets/liab , if anty, are nol yet complete due to inherent complexily associaled with the valuations.
The purchase price allocation is preliminary and subject to adjustment aver the course of 2008 on completion of the
valuation process and analysis of resulting tax effects; such adjustments could be material to these financial
statements.

The preliminary fair vatue of assets and liabilities acquired and the consideration paid is as lollows:

Fair market value of assets acquired:

Mincra Canare
de Moxico S.A_deC V.

Assets:
Cash 1 170,855
Receivables al prepaids 112,752
Equipment 3157
Mineral propertien 60,741
Liabilitics:
Accounts pryables and othor sccrucd Liabilitics 1254,455)
Toetal 5 792,850
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation; November 15, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes 1o the Consolidated Firancial Statements

Six Months ended Junc 39, 2008
{Unaudited — Preparcd by Management)

Six Months ended June 30, 2008
(Unaudited - Prepared by Manageinent)

5. Plan of Arraggement  {conticiued) 6. Mineral Properties  (continued)
Consideration given: {d) Expenditure cptions:
As at June 30, 2008, to maintain the Company’s interest and te fully exercise the options under various
Minera Canarc property agreemenis covering its properties, the Company must incur exploration expenditures on the
sk Musico 8.A de €.V, properties and/or make payments in the form of cash and/er shares to the optionors as foliows:
Share consuderation 3 30,283
Advancos on soxquisition 454,992
Other oovsiduration 36,575 Option/Advance Eapeuliture
—_— Royaly Payments Commiimonits
Towal 4 792,250 (US. dollars) (US dollas}
e ————— Los Arcatres (Nots 6(a3)
Option and d i s 2.350.000 5 1.631,304
Net profil interest reduction of uydown 1,000,000 -
6. Mineral Properties Santiage (Note 6b)) 1,940,000 152,639
) Los Arrastres: Santiage Fraction (Note bicH 25,000 1,100,000
In February 2007, Canarc entered into an option agrettent to acquire a 100% inlerest in the Los Arastres s 5.115.000 s 2.783.943
gold/silver property by making USS$2.5 million in cash payments and spending USS2 million on
exploration over a 3 year period. The vendor will retain a 2% NSR and Canarc had the right to reduce the
NSR to 1% by paying US$! million at any time. Canarc made an initial payment of US$50,000 upon the R . - X i
signing of the option agreement and a further payment of US$75.000 in August 2007 Then in Febnuary These amounts may be reduced in the futwre 25 the Company detenmines which properties (o continue to
3008, Canarc made a cash payment of US$25,000. Pursuant ko the Plan of Arrangement which closed in explore and which o abandon.
June 2008. the property was transferred (o the Company (Note 5).
(b) Santiago: (] Mineral properties contingencies:
In May 2007, Canarc entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Santiago gold The Company has n.==wn_=_m investigated rights of oi.ﬁa_..i of atl of its Jumu.oa_ Eqn.n:..nm_nocnmumm.o:u
properly by making US$2 miltion in cash payments over a 5 year period and spending US$200,000 on and, 1o the best of its knowledge, all agreements relating to such ownership rights are in good standing.
exploration over a 2 year period. The vendor will retain a 2% NSR. Canarc made an initial payment of However, 2l propertics/concessions may be subject 10 prior claims, agreements or transfers, and rights of
US$30,000 was made upon the sipning of the option agreement and a further payment of US$30,000 in ownership may be affected by undetected defects.
November 2007, Then in May 2008, Canare made a cash payment of US$60,000, Pursuant to the Plan of
Arrangement which closed in June 2008, the pro) was fransferred to the Company (Note 3).
e ! i © property mpany { ) 7. Equipment
(c) Santiago Fraction:
in September 2007, Canarc entered into an option and joitk venture agreement to acquire up to a 75% June 30. _ukc.ﬂ_a —
interest in the Santiago Fraction property by issuing 15,000 comunon shares, paying US$25,000 in cash Cos >>_w_8,_“_==_ m e
after 1 year, and spending up ta US$1 millien in exploration over a S-year period. Canarc issued 15,000 atlen 2u
common shares at a deemed value of $0.45 per share in 2007. Pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement which )
closed in June 2008, the property was transferred to the Company (Note 5). Exquipicatt $ e 3 450 3 3187
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes to the Conselidated Financial Staiements
Six Months ended June 30, 2008

(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

3. Notes Payable

In December 2007, the Company received proceeds of $300,000 in demand loans of which $120,000 were from
directors and afficers of the Company. The lozns were repayable on demand and bore an interest rate of $% per
annum. As at June 30, 2008, interest of $§4,723 was accrued,

On July 31. 2008, the Company settled the principal of $280.000 in demand Joans by the issuance of 2.8 million
units at a deemed price of $0.10 per unit. Each unit was comprised of one common share and one-haif of a whole
share purchase warram; each warrant is exercisable to acquire one common share at $0.12 until January 31, 201C.
The remaining principal of $20,000 was paid in cash, and all accrued imerest of 37,129 g5 of July 11, 2008 was
paid in cash,

9, Share Capital

Authorized and issued:

The authorized share capital cf the Company is comprised of unlimited common shares without par value.

Common shares issued for considetation other than cash are recorded at the quoted markel value of the shares as of
the zgreement date, except in the case of commen shares issued on exercise of stack options and share appreciation
rights under the Company's stock option plan, which include the fair value of related options or rights previously
allocated to contributed surplus.

The Company has proceeded with a private placement for up to 4.6 million urits at a price of 30,25 per unit. Each
unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of a whole share purchase warrant; each warrant is exercisable
to acquire onc common share at $0.35 and has a term of 18 months.

10. Related Party Transactioas

Related party ransactions during the six months caded June 30, 2008 include:

- $11,027 in salaries paid to the directors of the Company; and
- 354,052 in legat fees to a law firm in which a senior officer of the Company is a partner,

Principal of $110,000 in demand loans owed to the directors of the Company were seitled by the issuance of units
(Note 8),

Details of the Arrangement between the Company and Canarc are provided in Note 5.

11. Segrient Disclosures

The Company has one operaling segment, being mineral exploration, and substantially all assets of the Company are
located in Canada except for mineral properties as disclosed in Note 6.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.
{the “Company™}

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the SIx Months Ended June 30, 2008

CAUTION - FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained herein reparding the Company and its operations constitute “forward-tooking statements™
within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, All statements that are not
historical facts, including without limitation statements rcgarding fiture estimates, plans, objectives, assumptions or
expectations of future perfonnance, are “forward-looking statements”. We caution you that such “forward looking
statements” involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and future events to differ
materially from those anticipated in such statements. Such risks and uncertainties include fluctuations in precious metal
prices, unpredictable results of exploration activities, uncertainties inherent in the estimation of inineral reserves and
resources, fluctuations in the costs of goods and services, problems associnted with exploration and mining opemtions,
changes in legal, social or political cenditions in the jurisdictions where the Company operates, lack of appropriate funding
and other risk factors, as discussed in the Company’s filings with Canadian securities regulatory agencies, The Company
expressty disclaims any obligation to update any forward.looking statements.

1.0

The following Management's Discussion and Anatysis ("MD&A™) of Caza Gold Corp. (the “Company™} shoutd be read in
conjunction with the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2008,
which are available at the SEDAR website at www sedarsom.

All financial information in this MD&A, is prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
(“CAD GAAP™), and all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

All information contained in the MD&A is as of August 29, 2008 unless otherwise indicawed.

Ll Background

The Company was incorperated on November (5, 2007 under the laws of British Columbia and is engaged in the acquisition,
exploration, development and exploitation of precious metal propenies in Mexico, The Company eurrently owns or holds,
directly or indirectly, interests in precious melal properties, known as Los Asrastres, Santiago and Santiago Fraction, in
Mexico, which were acquired pursuani 10 the Plan of Arrangement (the “Arrangement”™} between the Company and its
previous paremt company, Canare Resource Corp, (“Canare™). The Plan of Arrangement closed on June 25, 2008.

Plan of Armangement:

On June 25, 2008, the Company closed the Amrangement with Canare whereby approximately 83¢% of Canarc’s interest in the
Company was distributed 1o the sharehclders of Canarc. Under the Arrangement, Canare transferred all its interest in ils
whally-cwned Mexican subsidiary, Minera Canarce de Mexico $.A. de C.V., which holds all the rights 10 the Mexican gold
exploration propertics to the Company in return for 14,346,800 shares of the Company, of which Canare distributed
11,950,750 shares of the Company by way of a dividend in kind to Canarc’s shareholders on the basis of one share of the
Company for every six shares of Canarc held by Canare’s shareholders as of the dividend record date. Canarc continues lo
hold 2,396,150 shares of the Company representing approximately a 17% interest in the Company.

CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

The following table sets forth a preliminary allocation of the purchase price 1o assets and liabilitics acquired, based on
preliminary estimates of fair value. Final valuation estimates of mineral properies, contingen and future income tax
assets/lizbilities, if any, are not yet complete due to inherent complexity associated with the valuations. The purchase price
allocation is preliminary and subject o adjustment over the course of 2008 on completion of the valuation process and
analysis of resulting tax effects; such adjustments could be material to these financial statements.

The preliminary fair vatue of assets and liabilities acquired and the consideration paid is as follows:

Fair market value of assets acquired:

Mincra Canare
de Mexicn 5.4 deC.V.

Assels:
Cash $ 170635
Rexeivables and prepaids 112758
Equipment 3,187
Mineral properties 60,741
Lishilities:
Accorits pyables and other accrued lisbilities (254.435)
Total $ 792,850

Consideration given:

Miscra Canarc
de Mexico S.A deC. V.

Share consideration 1 31283
Advances n acquitition 454992
hber consideration 16,573
Toul $ 92850

As the Company is focused on ils exploration actjvities, there is no production, sales or inventory in the conventional sense.
The recoverability of costs capitalized to mineral properties and the Company’s future financial suceess will be dependent
upon the extert t0 which it can discover mineralization and determire the economic viability of developing such properties.
Such development may take years to complete and the amount of resulting income, if any, is difficult to determine with any
certainty at this time. Many of the key factors are outside of the Company’s controt, The sales value of any mineralization
discovered and developed by the Company is largely dependent upon factors beyond the Company’s control such as the
market prices of the meta!s produced. As the carrying value and amortization of mineral propertics and capital assets are, in
part, related to the Company's mineral reserves and resources, if any, the estimation of such reserves and resources is
significant tg the Company’s position and results of operations.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of lncorporation: November 15, 2007)
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

Gold prices continued to shaw strength as the cumnulative annual average increased from US$4435 in fiscal 2005 to US$602 in
fiscal 2006 and US$695 in 2007, closing at US$838 on Aupust 28, 2008. Gold prices achieved new highs in each of the past
several years. In lale 2005, prices reached a high of US$537, then US$725 in May 2006 and 153841 in November 2007
before reaching 2 high of US$1,011 in March 2008,

Los Arrastres properly

In Febtuary 2007, Canarc entered into an option agreement to acquir¢ a 100% interest in the Los Asrastres pold/silver
property by making US$2.5 million in cash payments and spending US$2 million on 212&6: over a 3 year period. The
vendor will retain a 2% NSR and Canarc had the right to reduce the NSR to 1%% by paying USS] million at any time. Canarc
made an initial payment of US$50,000 was made upon the signing of the oplion agreement and a further payment of
US$75,000 in August 2007. Then in February 2008, Canarc made a cash payment of US$25,000. Pursuant 10 the
Arrangetnent which closed in June 2008, the property was transferred to the Company.

Sanriago property

In May 2007, Canarc entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Samtiago gold property by making
US$2 mellien in cash payments over a § year period and spending US$200,000 on exploration over a 2 year petiod. The
vendor will retain a 2% NSR. Canarc made an initial payment of US$30,000 upon the signing of the option agreement and a
further payment of US$30,000 in November 2007. Then in May 2008, Canarc made a cash payment of US$60,000.
Pursuant to the Arrangement which closed in June 2008, the property was transferred to the Company.

Santiaga Fraciion property
In September 2007, Canarc entered into an aption and joint venture agreement 10 acquife up to a 75% interest in the Santiago
Fraction property by issuing 15,000 common shares, paying US$25,000 in cash after [ year, and spending up to US$L

million in exploration over a S.-year period. Canarc issued 15,000 common shares al a deetned value of $0.45 per share in
2007. Pursuant to the Arrangement which closed in June 2008, the property was iransferred to the Company.

13

All financial information is prepared in accordance with CAD GAAP, and all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian
dollars unless otherwise indicated.
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CAZA GOLD CORP,

{Date of Incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

From November 15, 2007
1o December 31, 2007

Tolal revennes 5

) before discomineed operations and exiraordinary nems:

1 {27,469)
Basic per share s (274.69)
{iai) Fully diluted per thaze s {27469
Net income Uoxs )
G} Towd 5 (27.459)
(ii} Basic per share 5 (274.69)
(iiiy Fully dilwmed per share H (27469
Total anscis H 300234
Total long-term liabilitics % -
Dividerds per share 5

14 Results of Qoerations

Second Quarter of Fiscal 2008 - Six months ended June 30, 2008

The Company realized a net loss of $137,208 for the six months ended June 30, 2008. Expenses of $78,765 which were
incurred for legal services for the Arrangement contributed significantly to the net loss for the period. Such expenses were
shared between the Company and Canarc. mEEQS remueneration was higher in the second quarter as the Company
:ﬁ_.Bw& __u activities related to the acquisition of the Mexican properties from the Asrangement, and developing and

1g exploration prog for these properties. Corporate development reflects active due diligaice znd property
QEE:_EG in Mexico for acquisitions and to identify properties of merit for possible acquisitions. Property investigation fel)
in the second quarter relative to the first quarter of fiscal 2008 reflecting on the Company's earlier continual efforts in
identifying properties of nerit in Mexico which changed to an exploration focus as the Arrangement proceeded fo close.
Interest expense was altributable to the outstanding notes payable which bore an interest rate of 9% per annum in which
$280,000 in notes payable were settled by the issuance of 2.8 million units 2t $0.10 per unit and the balance including all
acerued interest were seftled by cash.

The Company has no sources of operating revenues.

As at June 30, 2008, the Company has mineral properties which are comprised of the lollowing:
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Tor the Six Months Ended Junc 30, 2008

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of Incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Six Menths Ended June 30, 2008

Los Santiage
Arrastres Santiage Fraciion Other Total

Acquisiton Costs:

Balance, beginning of period s -3 - 3 - 3 -3 -
Flan of armangement 165.379 127,659 7,603 15,506 320,147
Bzlance, ending of period 169,179 127,659 7,603 15,506 320,147
Defcrred Exploration Expenditures:

Balance, beginnting of period . - - - -
Plan of arrangement 389.840 50,754 - - 440,594
Balance, ending of period 389,840 50,754 - - 440,594
Mineral properties, ending of period 3 550219 8 (78413 § 7603 § 15,506 § 760,741

Al June 30, 2008, to maintain its interest and to fully exercise the options under various property agreements covering the
properties located in Mexico, the Company must incur exploration expenditures on the properties and/or make payments in
the form of cash to the oplionors as follows:

Oplica’Advance Expenditure

ity Pa Craninitmots

{U.S. dollars) {US dollars)

Lot Asrastres

Option p od epondi i H 2,350,000 s 1,631,304
Nt profil inforest reduction o buytown 1,000,000 -
Santiagn 1,340,000 152,639
Santiago Fractiom 25,0t 1,000,000
- 5315000 - 1783943

These amounts may be reduced in the fisture as the Company determines which properties to continue to explore and which
to abandon.

LS Summary of Quarter]y Results

All financial information is prepared in accordance with CAD GAAP, and all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian
doltars unless otherwise indicated.
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The follewing table provides selected financial information of the Company for each of the last three quarters ended at the
most recently completed quarter, June 30, 2008:

2008 From Nov 15, 20G7
Jutte 30 Mai 31 1o Dec 31, 2007
Tatal revesucs b - 5 . s -
Income {loss) befpre discootinyed
discominued operations and
extraordinary items:
(1) Towl s (60,949) § (76.239) 5 (2746%)
(i) Basic pex share b3 ©.08) 3 (762.59) s {274.69)
(i) Fully diluted
per share 3 (00%) § (762.39) s {274.6%)
Nct income (lossg):
(i) Total $ (60.949) § (76.259) 13 {27.469)
(ii) Basi¢ per share 5 (0.08) § (762.59) 5 {274.69)
(it} Fully diluted
per sharg 5 ©u8) § {162.59) 5 {274.69)
Tuolal assets 5 1,316,769 % 235,302 1 300234
Tolal tong-turm Kabililies 5 - H - H -
Dividends per share 1 - 3 - 5 -

At incorporation on November 15, 2007, the Company issued E({) shares at $0.01 per share (o Canare. Pursuant to the
Arrangement which closed on June 25, 2008, the Company issued 14,346,800 shares to Canarc o acquire the Mexican
properties. The effect of the equity distribution is reflective in the significant change in the quarterly loss per share in the
second quarter of fiscal 2008.

L6 bquidity

The Company is in the development stage and has not yet determined whether its mineral properties contain reserves that are
econcmically recoverable. The recoverability of emounts capitalized for mineral propenties is entircly dependent upon the
existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company te obiain the necessary financing to complete the
development 2nd upon future profitable production. The Company knows of no trends, demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that may result in the Company's liquidity cither materiatly increasing or decreasing at the present time or in the
foreseeable future. Material increases or decreases in the Company’s liqridity are substantially determined by the success or
failure of the Company’s exploration programs and overall market conditions for smaller mineral exploration companies.
Since its incorporation in 2007, the Company has endeavored to secure mineral properties that in due course could be brought
into production ta provide the Company with cash flow which would be used to undertake work programs on other projects.
To that end, the Company has expended its funds on mineral propertics that it believes have the potential to achieve cash
flow within a reasonable time frame. As a result, the Company has incurred losses during each of its fiscal perieds since
incorporation, This result is typical of smaller exploration companies and will continue untess positive cash flow is achicved,

The following table contains selected financial information of the Company’s liquidity:
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June 30, December 31,

2008 2007
Cash and cash cquivalents s 436,622 3 299.810
Working capital (deficiency) s 40,71¢) 3 (27.468)

Ongoing operating expenses continue to reduce the Cempany’s cash resources and working capital.

In December 2007, the Company received proceeds of $300,000 in demand loans of which §120,000 were from direct ors and
officers of the Compary. The loans were repayable on demhand and bore an interest rate of 993 per annum.  As at June 30,
2008, interest of $14,723 was acerued. O July 31, 2008, the Company settled the principal of 280,000 in demand loans by
the issuance of 2.8 million units at a deemed price of $0.10 per unit. Each unit was comprised of one common share and one-
half of a whole share purchase warrant; each warrant is exercisable 10 acquire one cotnrnon share at $0.12 wnil January 31,
2010. The remaining principal of $20,000 was paid in cash, and all accrued interest of $17,129 as of July 31, 2008 was paid
in cash,

The Company has proceeded to raise equity financing of up to 4.6 million units at a price of $0.25 per unit. Each unit is
comprised of one cormon share and one-half of a whole share purchase warrant; each warrant is exercisable 10 acquire one
common share at $0.35 and has a term of 18 menths.,

The Company has a number of option agreements for mineral properties that involve payments in the forn of cash and/or
shares of the Company as well as minimum exploration expenditure requirements. Under fiem 1.4, further details of
contractual phligations are provided as al June 30, 2008. The Company will continue 1o rely upon equity financing as its
principal source of financing its projecs.

1.7 ESQUTT

Item 1.6 provides further details.

1.8 3 h men

There are no known of-balance sheet arrangements which have not been disclosed,

Related party transactions during the six months ended June 30, 2008 include:

- $11.027 in salaries paid 10 the directors of the Company; and
- $54,052in legal fees to a law firm in which a senior officer of the Company is a partner.

Principal of $110,000 in demand loans owed 1o the directors of the Company were settled by the issuznce of units. Item 1.6
provides further details.

Details of the Arrangement between the Company and Canarc are provided in ltem 1L

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Datc of Incorporation; November 15, 2007)
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

1,10 Second Ouarter
Items 1.4, 1.5 and 1.6 provide further details for the second quarter of fiscal 2008.

LH nyaction

There are no proposed asset or business acquisitions or dispositions, other than those in the ordinary course and other than
those already disclosed in this MD& A, before the board of directors for consideration.

The preparation of financial statements requires the Company to make estimates that zffect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assevs and liabilities a1 the date of the financial statemnents abd the reported
amoumts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring (he vse of cstimates relate to fair
values and allocations in business combinations, mineral propertics, determination of reclamation obligztions, fair values of
financial instruments, and valuation allowances for future income 1ax assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Acquisition costs of mineral properties and exploration and development expenditures incurred thereto are capitalized and
defcrred.  The costs related to a property frem which there is production wil! be amortized using the unit-of-production
method. Capitalized costs are written down to their estimated recoverable amount if the property is subsequently determined
to be uneconomic. The amounts shown for mineral properties represent costs incurred to date, less recoveries and write-
downs, and do not reflect present or future values.

1,13

New accounting proncuncements are as foklowss:
{0 Capital disclosures:

In February 2007, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1535, “Capital Disclosures”, which requires the disclosure of
both qualitative and quantitative information that provides users of financial stajements with information to evaluate
the entity’s objectives, policics and procedures for managing capital. The new section is cffective for years
beginning on or afler October I, 2007,

(1) Financial instruments:

In February 2007, the CICA issued two new standards, Section 3862 “Financial Instruments Disclosures™ and
Section 3863 “Financial Instruments Presemation”. Thesc sections replace the existing Sectien 3861, “Financial
Instraments Disclosure and Presentation™. Section 3862 provides users with information to evaluate the significance
of the financial instruments of the entity’s financia) position and performances, nature and extem of risks arising
from financial instruments, and how the entity manages those risks. Section 3863 deals with the classification of
financial instruinents, related interests, dividends, losses and gains, and the circumstances in which financial assets
and financia! liabilities are offset. The new sections are effcctive for years beginning on or after October [, 2007,

(iii) Goodwill and intangible assets:

In February 2008, the CECA issued Handbook Section 3064 “Goodwill and intangible assets™, replacing Section
3062, “Goodwill and other intangible assets™ and Section 3450, “Research and developiment costs™. This section
establishes standards for the recoghition, imeasarement. presertation, and disclosure of goodwill subsequent to its
initial recognition and of intangible assets by profil-orienled enterprises. Standards concerning goodwill are
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{Date of Incorporation: November 15, 2007}
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

unchanged from the standards included in the previeus Section 3062. The new section is effective for years
beginning on or afier Octaber 1, 2008. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this new sectien on
its consolidaied financial statements.

{iv) International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS™):

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board {"AcSB") published a new strategic plan that will significantly
affect financial reporting requireinents for Canadian companies, The AcSB strategic plan outlines the convergence
of Canadian generally accepted accounting principles with IFRS over an expected five year transitienal period. In
February 2008 the AcSB announced that 2011 is the changeover date for publicly listed companies to use IFRS,
replacing Canada's own generally accepted accounting principles. The date is for interim and annual financial
statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The transition date of Jarnary !, 201 will
require the restatement for comparative purposes of amounts reported by the Company for the year ended December
31, 2010, While the Company has begun assessing the adeption of IFRS fer 2011, 1he ftnancial reporting impact of
the transition to IFRS cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

(v) Going concem:

In June 2007, the CICA amended Handbook Section 1400, “General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation”,
which requires management to make an assessment of the Company s ability to continue gs a going-concern. When
financial statements are not prepared on a going-concern basis, that fact shall be disclosed together with the basis on
which the financial statements arc prepared and the reason why the Company is not considered a going-concern.
The new section is effective for years beginning on or afler January 1, 2008, The Company does not expect the
adoption of the standards 10 result in any material changes to the Company’s financial staternents.

114 Financial Instruments and Other Instryments

The Company's finaneial instruments approximate their camying values.

The Company is exposed in varying degrees 1o a variety of financia! instrument related risks. The Company's credit risk is
pritnarily aftributable te its liquid financial assets including cash and equivalents. The Company [inits exposure to credit risk
on liquid financial assets through maintzining its cash and cash equivalents with high-credit quality financial institutions.
The Company does not have financial assets that are invested in asset backed commercial paper. In respect of financial
assets, the Company's policy is to invest cash at floating rates of interest in cash equivalents, in order to maintain liquidity,
while achicving a satisfactory return, Fluctumtions in interest rates impact on the vatue of cash equivalents,

Iretns 1.13 provide further details of fnancial instruments.

115 Other MID&A Requirements

L15.1 Other MD&A Requirements

Additional information relating to the Company are as follows:

{a)} may be found on SEDAR al www sedar.com; and

(b) is also previded in the Company’s unaudiled consolidated financial statemnents for the six menths ended June 30,
2008,
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1.15.2 OQutstanding Share Data

The Company's authorized share capitzl eonsists of unlimited commoen shares without par value,

Changes in the Company s share capital lor the six months ended June 30, 2008 are as folfows:

MNumber of Shares Amount
Balance at December 31, 2007 10a 3 1
Isszed:
Plan of 2 14,346,800 301283
Balance at June 30, 2008 14,346,900 3 301,284

At August 29, 2008, there were 4,346,900 common shares issued and outstanding.
At June 30, 2008, the Company had ne cutstanding stock options or share pucchase warrants,

Al August 29, 2008, there were |.4 million warrants outstanding with an exercise price of $0.12 and an expiry date of
January 31, 20-10.

116 Qutlgok

Although it currently has sufficient capital 1o satisfy existing cperating and administrative expenses in the short term, the
Company will continué to depend upon equity capilal to finance its existing projects. There are no assurances that capital
requirements will be met by this means of financing as inherent risks are attached therein including commedity prices,
financial mark ot conditions, and general ecenomic factors. The Company does not expect 1o realize any operaling revenues
from its properties in the foreseeable future.

117 Risk Factors

The following is a brief discussion of those distinctive gr special characteristics of the Company’s cperations and industry
that may have a material impact on, or constitute risk factors in respect of, the Comnpany”s fisture financial performance.

Explovation and Development Risks

‘There is no assurance given by the Company that its exploration and development programs and propesties will result in the
discovery, development or production of a commeteially viable ore bedy,

The business of exploration for minerals and mining imvolves a high degree of risk. Few propertics thai are explored are
ultimately developed into producing mines. There is no assurance that the Company's mincral explotation and development
activities will result in any discoveries of bodies of commercial ore. The economics of developing gold and other mineral
properties are affected by many factors including capital and operating cosls, variations of the grades and tennages of ore
mined, {luctuating mineral market prices, costs of mining and processing equiprnent and such other factors as government
regulations, including regulations rclating to royalties, allowable production, importing and exporting of minerals and
environmental protection, Substamial expenditures are required to establish reserves through drilling and other wotk, 1o
develop metallurgical processes to extract metal from ore, and to develop the mining and processing facilities and
infrastructure at any site chosen for mining. No assurance can be given that funds required for development can be cbtained
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on a timely basis. The marketability of any minerals acquired or discovered may be affected by numerous factors which are
beyond the Company 's control and which cannot be accurately foreseen or predicied, such as market fluctuations, the global
marketing conditions for precious and base metals, the proximity and capacity of milling and smelting facilities, mineral
markets and processing equipment, and such other factors as government regulations, including regulations relating to
royalties, allowable production, importing and exporting minerals and environmental protection. In order to commence
explcitation of certain properties presently held under exploration coficessions, it is necessary for the Company to apply for
exploitation concessions. There can be no guarantee that such concessions will be granted.

Financing Risks

There is ne assurance given by the Company that it will be able to secure the financing necessary 10 explore, develop and
produce its mineral properties.

The Company does not present] y have sufficient finzneial rescurces or operating cash-Mow to undertake by itself all of its
planned exploration and development programs. The development of the Company’s properties may therefore depend on the
Company's joint venture partners and on the Company’s ability to obtain additional required financing. There is no
assurance the Company will be successful in obtaining the required financing, the lack of which could result in the loss or
substantial dilutien of its interests (as existing or as _._Evowa to be acquired) in its properties as disclosed herein, The
Company's ability to eontinue as a going concern is dependent on the ability of the Cotpany to raise equity capital
financings, the attainment of profitzble operations, external financings, and further share issuance to satisfy working capital
and eperating needs,

Estimates of Mineral Deposits
There is no assurance given by the Company that any estimates of mineral depasits herein will not change.

Ne assurance can be given that any idemtified mineralized deposit will ever qualify as a commercially viable mineable ore
body that can be legally and economically exploited. Estimates regarding mineralized deposits can also be affected by many
factors such as permitting regulations and requirements, weather, environmemal factors, unforeseen technical difficulties,
unusual or unexpected geological formations and work interruptions. In addition, the grades and tonnages of ore ultimately
mined may differ from thal indicated by drilling results and other work, There can be no assurance that gold recovered in
smail-scale labormory tests will be duplicated in large-scale tests under on-site conditions. Material changes in mineralized
tonnages, grades, diluticn and stripping ratios or recovery rates may affect the cconomic viability of projects. The existence
of mineralized deposits should not be interpreted as assurances of the future delineation of ore reserves of the profitability of
future operations.

Mineral Prices
There is no assurance given by the Company that mineral prices will not change.

The mining industry is competitive and mineral prices fuctuate so that there is no assurance, even if conunercial quantities of
& mineral resource are discovered, that a profitable market will exist for the sale of same. Faclers beyond the control of the
Cempany may affect the marketability of any substances discovered. The prices of precious and base metals {luctuate on a
daily basis, have experienced velatile and significant price movements over shorl periods of time, and are affected by
numerous factors beyond the control of the Company, including international economic and political trends, expectalions of
inflatien, currency exchange fluctuations (specifically, the ULS, dollar retative to other currencies), interest rates, central bank
transactions, world supply for precicus and base metals, international investments, monetary systems, and globat or regional
consumption pattems {such as the development of gold coin programs), speculative activities and increased production due to
improved mining and production methods. The supply of and demand for gold are affected by various factors, including
palitical events, economic conditions and production ¢osts in major gold producing regions, and governmenta! policies with
respect to gold heldings by a nation of its citizens. The exact effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicied, and the
combinatton of these factors may result in the Company not receiving adequate retumns on invested capital or the investments
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retaining their respective values. There is no assurance that the prices of goid and other precious and base metals will be such
that the Company’s properties can be mined at a profit.

Conflices of Interest

Thete is no assurance given by the Company that its directors and officers wiil not have conflicts of interest from time to
time,

The Company’s directors and cfficers may setve as directors or officers of other public resource companies or have
significant shareholdings in other public resource companies and, to the extent that such other companies may participate in
ventures in which the Company may participate, the directors of the Company may have a conflict of interest in negotiating
and concluding temms respecting the extent of such participation. The interests of these companies may differ from time to
time. In the event that such a conflict of interest arises zt a meeting of the Company’s directors, a director who has such a
conflict will abstain from voting for or against any resolution involving any such conflict. From time to time several
companies may participate in the atquisition, exploration and development of natural resource properties thereby allowing
for their participation in larger programs, permitting involvement in a greaer number of programs and reducing financial
exposure in resped of any one program. It may also oceur that 2 particular com pany will assign all or a portion of its interest
in a particular program 1o another of these comparies due 10 the financial position of the company making the assignment. In
accordance with the laws of the Province of British Cohmmbia, Canada, the directors of the Company are required to act
honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Company. [n determining whether or not the Company will participate
in any particular exploration or mining project at any given lime, the directors will primarily consider the upside potential for
the project to be accretive to shareholders, the degree of risk 10 which the Company may be exposed and its fnancial pesition
at that time.

Uninsured Ricks
There is nie assurance given by the Company that it is adequately insured against all risks.

The Company may become subject to liability for cave-ins, pollution or other hazards against which 1 cannot insure or
against which it has elected not to insure because of high premium costs or other reasons. The payment of such liabilities
would reduce the Funds available for exploration and mining activities.

Environmental end Other Regulatory Requirements
There is no assurance given by the Company that it has met all environmental or regulatory requirements.

The current or future cperations of the Company, including exploration and development activities and commencement of
production o its properties, require permits from various foreign, federal, state and local governmental authorities and such
operations are and will be governed by laws and regulations governing prospecting, development, mining, production,
exports, taxes, labour standards, occupational health, waste disposal, toxic substances, land use, environmental protection,
mine safety and other matters. Companies engaged im the development and operation of mines and retated facilitics generally
experience increased costs, and delays in production and other schedules as a resuht of the need to comply with applicable
laws, regulations and permits, There can be no assurance that approvals and permits required in order for the Company to
commence production on its various properties will be obtained. Additional permits and studies, which may include
envitehmental impact studies conducted before permits can be obtained, are necessary prior to operation of the other
properties in which the Company has interests and there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain or
maintain all necessary permits that may be required to commence constnuction, development or operation of mining facifities
at these properties on terms which enable operations to be conducted at economically justifiable costs.

Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations, and permitting requirements may resalt in enforcement actions including
orders issued by regulatory or judicial authorities causing operations to cease or be curtailed, and may include corrective
nteasures requiring capital expenditures, installation of additional equipment or remedial actions. Parties engaged in mining
operations may be required tc compensate those suffering loss or damage by reasen of the mining activities and may have
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civil or criminal fines or penaties imposed for violations of applicable laws or regulations. New laws or regulations or
amendments to curtent laws, regulations and permits goveming operaticns and aclivities of mining companies, or more
stringent implementation of current laws, regulations or permits, could have a tnaterial adverse impact on the Company and
cause increases in capital expenditures or production costs or reduction in levels of production at producing properties or
require abandonment or delays in development of new mining properties.

Reclamarion

There is a risk that monies allotted for land reclamation may not be sufficient to cover all risks, due te changes in the nature
of 1lwe waste rock or tailings and/or revisions to government regulations, Therefore additional finds, or reclamation bonds or
other forms of financial assurance may be required over the tenure of the project to cover potential risks, These additional
costs may have material adverse impact on the financial condition and resutts of the Company.

Foreign Countrics and Regulatory Require ments

Certain of the Company s properties are located in countrics outside of Canada, and mineral exploration and mining activives
may be affected in varying degrees by political stabifity and government regulations relating to the mining industry. Any
changes in reguiations ot shifis in political attitudes may vary from country to country and are beyond the contrel of the
Company and may adversely affect its business. Such changes have, in the past, included nationalization of foreign owned
businesses and properties. Operations may be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with respect to
restrictionts on productior, price controls, export controls, income and other taxcs and duties, cxpropriation of property,
environmental legislation and mine safety. These uncertainties may make it more difficult for the Company and its joint
venture partiers to oblain any required production financing For its mineral properties.

Currency Fluctiwation and Foreign Exchange Controls

The Company maintains a portion of its funds in U5, dollar denominated accounts. Cenain of the Company s property and
related contracts are denominated in US. dollars. The Company's aperations in countries other than Canada arc normally
carried owt in the currency of that country and make the Company subject 1o foreign cwmrency fluctuations and such
fluctuations may materially affect the Company’s financial position and results. In addition future contracts may not be
denominated in £).S. dollars and may expose the Company to foreign currency fluctuations and such fuctuations may
materially affect the Company's financial position and results. In addition, the Company is or may become subject to foreign
exchange restrictions which may severely fimit or restrict its ability to repatriate capital or profits from its properties outside
of Canada to Canada. Such restrictions have cxisted in the past in countries in which the Company holds property interests
and future impositions of such restrictions could have a materially adverse cffect en the Company’s future profitability or
ability to pay dividends.

Third Party Reliance
The Company’s rights to acquire intcrests in certain mineral propentics have heen granted by third parties whe themselves

hold anly an option to acquire such propertics. As a result, the Company may have no direct contractual relationship with the
underlying property holder.
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FORM 52-109F2 — Certification of Interlm Filings

Venture Issuer Basle Certificate

1, Bradford J, Cooke, the Chief Executive Officer of Caza Gold Corp., centify the following:

1. Review: | have reviewed the interim financinl statements and interim MD&A (together the
interim filings) of Caza Gold Carp. (the "1ssuer”) for the interim period ending June 30, 2008;

2. No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the
interim filings do not contain any unirue statement of a material fact or omit to state a materiat
fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the
circumstances under whicl it was made, for the periad covered by the interim filings;

3. Fair prexentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim
financial statements together with the other financial information included in the interiin filings

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of opcrations and cash flows
of the Issuer. as of the date and for the periods presented in the interitn filings;

Date: August 29, 2008

fs/  Brodford Cooke

Bradiord J. Cooke, Chief Executive Officer

FORM 52-109F2 — Certification of Interim Filings

Venture Issuer Basie Certificate

1, Philip Yee, the Chief Financial Officer of Caza Gold Corp., certify the following:

1. Review: 1 have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MD&A (together the
interim filings} of Caza Gold Corp. (the “Issuer”} for the interim period ending June 30, 2008;

2. No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the
interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or pmit to state a material
fact required to be stated or that is necessary 1o make a statement not misleading in light of the
circumstances under which it was made, for the period covered by the interim [ilings;

3. Fair presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable difigence, the interim
financizl statements together with the other financial information included in the interim filings

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition. results of operations and cash (lows
of the Issuer, as of the date and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

Date: August 29, 2008

/s Philip Yee

Philip Yee, Chief Financial Officer

NOTETO READER

In contrast \a the certificate requined undar Multilitora Instrurient $3-109 Cortiffcation of Mscloswe § Tsucrs” Annual E& Inicrim m..::h. M
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eoatrols sl procadures (DCAP) aod intornal control over fmancial reporting (ICFR), & defingd in M1 52-109  tn pasticular, nvns.._.——w._un
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i) enatrols and othet procecioes dexignad 10 provide bl that § .Bsaas.n&ﬂg.d.s&.ﬁﬁa.n
mmual Nilings, iteim filings of other reports filed of subminted under securics legiclmion & reconbod. p d and
teportad within the time periods apecified in seauities legislation; xnd

i) a process g provide masonshic assurance roganding the reliability of financial reporting znd the proparation of foumcial sutcmonts for
external prrposes in accondance with the issucr's GAAP.

The issuer's corifying olficers are resporiblc fof cneuning tha the processes are in place 1o provide thom with sufficiem knowlaige o support.
the represcolations ey arc making in this centifcate.
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effective basis DC&P end ICFR o defined in ME $2-109 may resull in sdditinnal risks to the quality, rel wnd of
imertm xnd anmaal filings &od other repurts providal unler sccuritics logislation.
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(Date of Incorporation: November 15,2007)

Nine Months endcd September 30, 2008

{Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

Notice to Readers of the Interim Unaodited Consolidated Flrancial Statements
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008

The interim unaudited consolidated financial stzlements of Caza Gold Corp. (the *Company™) for the nine
months ended September 30, 2008 (“Financial Statements™)} including the comparative financial statements
at December 31, 2007 have heen prepared by management. The Financial Statements are stated in terms of
Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated, and are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.




CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation; Novemnber 15, 2007}
Consolidated Balance Sheets

{Unaudited — Prepared by Management}

CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incotporation: November 15, 2007}
Consolidated Statements of Opetrations
{Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

Three Months Ended Ninc Months Ended
September 30, 2008 September 30, 2008
Expenses:

Amortization 3 m 5 01
Corporate development 19971 38,971
Employee remuneration (Note 10) M,956 50378
Foreign cxchange gain S6l {194)
Legat 18,669 97434
Office and sundry 14252 15,76%
Repulatory 5390 539%
Loss before the undernoted (93,999) {217,946)
Interest expense (2,568) {16,329)
Interest and other income - 500
Write off of mincral property interests {812.965) (812965}
Net boss and comprehensive loss for the period 5 {909,538y § {1.046,740)
Basic and diloted loss per share 5 {0.06) § {0.18)
Welghted average ber of shares ou ting 16,213,294 5,754,633

September 30, Drecember 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents s 577,883 5 299,810
Receivables and prepaids 123,813 424
701,696 300,234
Noncurrent Assets
Mineral properties (Note £) 127814 -
LCquipment (Note T} 2,957 -
130,771 -
s 932,467 s 300,234
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)
Current Liabllitles
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 122,341 3 26,740
Notes payable (Note ) - 300,962
222,341 327,702
Sharcholders’ Equity (Capital Deficiency)
Share capital {Note 9) 1,718,284 1
Deficit (1,008,158) {27,469)
710,126 {27,468)
s 932,467 3 300,234

Nature of operations (Note 1}
Commitments and contingencies {Note 6)
Subsequeni events (Notes 6 and 9)

Refer 10 the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Directors:

/y/ Bradford Cooke A/ Philip Yee

Director Director

45 1a1ad i

Refer to the actompanying notes to the €0




CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation; November 15, 2007)
Consolidated Statetnents of Shareholders’ Equity
(Unaudited — Prepared by Management}

Nine months ended From November 1§, 2007 to
September 30, 2008 December 3, 2047
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Commeon shares:
Balance, beginning of period 100 1 100 $ 1
Issued:
Plan of arrangement {Note 5) 14 346,800 301,283
Shares for debt (Note 8) 2,800,000 280,000
Private placement {Note Ha}) 4,620,000 1,137,000 -
Balance, end of petiod 21,766,900 1,718,284 100 1
Deflele:
Balance, beginning of pericd (27,469)
Pian of amangement (Note 5) 66,051 -
Loss for the period (1,046,740} {27.469)
Balance, end of period (1,008,158) (27.46%)
Total Sharcholders' Equity (Capital Deficiency) 710,126 S (27468}

Refer to the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: November 13, 2007)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2008 September 30, 2008
Cash provided from (used for):
Cperstions;
Loss fot the period 5 (909,532) $ (1,046,740}
Items not involving cash:
Amortization 201 m
Write-off of mineral properties 812,968 B12.96%
(96.366) (233,574
Changes in non-cash working capital itcms:
Receivables and prepaids {1,564} (10.637)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics {70,286) _158,B%6)
(174,216} (303,067)
Flnancing:
Repayment of notes payabie (20,962) (20.962)
Issuance of conmmon shares 587,000 1,i37.000
566,038 1,116,038
Investing:
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 5) - (284,537)
Mineral properties (250,561) (250,861)
(250,561) (534,898)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 141,261 278,073
Cash and cash cquivalents, beginning of the petiod 436,621 299,810
Cash snd cash equivalents, end of period $ £77,883 5 577,883
Non-cash flnancing and Invesiing sctiviiles:
Shares issued p to the plan of arrang, (Note 5) H - 1 301,283
Deficit adjustment for acquisition H $ 66,081

Refer to the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements,




CAZA GOLD CORP, CAZA GOLD CORP,

(Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007) (Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Consolidated Statements of Mineral Property Expenditures Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited — Prepared by Management) Nine Months ended Septernber 30, 2008

{Unaudited — Prepared by Manapement)

Los Lus Santiago 1, Nature of Operations
Angeles Arrasires Santizpo Fraction Total

Caza Gold Corp. (the “Company™) was incorporated on November 15, 2007 under the laws of British Columbia.
Acquisition Costs: The Company was previously a wholly-owned subsidiary of Canarc Resource Corp. (“Canarc™) until the Plan of
s s Arrangement {the “Artangement™) between the Company and Canare which becamne effective as of June 25, 2008,

Balance, beginning of period $ . - - Note § pravides further details of the Arrangement.
Plan of arrangement (Note 5) 15,506 169,379 127,659 7.603 320,197
Option payment - 82,500 - 25,999 108,469 The Company is in the mineral exploration business and has ol ye1 determined whether its properties contain
Write-off, - {251,879} - - (2351,879) reserves that are cconomically recoverable. The recoverability of amounts capitalized for mineral properties is
Balance, ending of perind 15,506 - 127,659 33,602 176,767 dependent upon the ability of the Company to amange appropriate financing as needed, the discovery of
economically recoverable reserves in ils mineral properties, the development of its properties, confirmaticn of the
Deferred Exploration Expenditures: Company’s intercst in the underlying properties (Note 6), the receipt of necessary permitting and upon future
profitzble production or proceeds from the disposition thereof,
Batance. beginning of period . - - . - ] ] .
Plan of arrangement (Note 5) - 419317 50,754 - 470,071 The Company has incurred significant operating losses and has an accumulated deficit of 51,008,000 at September
Assays and surveys - 31,497 93 - 31,796 30, 2008. Furthermore, the Company has working capital of $479,000 as at September 30, 2008, which is not
Consultants - 4,360 - 4,360 sufficient to achieve the Company's planned business objectives. These financial statements have been prepared on
Surface taxes - 105,912 - - 105,912 a going concemn basis, which assumes the realization of assets and liguidation of iiabilities in the normal course of
Write-off - (561,086) . - (561,086} business. The Company’s ability to continue 2s a going concemn is dependent on the ability of the Company to raise
Balance, ending of period R - SEM47 . 51,047 equity or debt financings and/or the attainment of profitable cperations. These financial statements do include
any adjustments fo the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts and classification of liabilities that
might be o . should the Company be unablc to conti i X
Minersl properties, ending of period s 15,506 % - 3 178,76 % 33602 3 227814 oh eeessary ompany Fue 83 3 going concem
1, Sigaificant Aecountiog Pollcies
Refer 10 the accompanying notes 1o the consolidated financial statements. (a} Basis of presentation:

These consolidated firancial statements include the accounts of the Compeny and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Minera Canarc de Mexico S.A. de C.V,

All significant intercompany transaclions and batances have been eliminated.

(b Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term liquid investments having terms to matunty when
acquired of three months or less. Shost-term investments having terms te maturity when acquired of

greater than three months and less than one year are included in marketable securities or other investments
as appropriate.

C ez Gakl Com. Page ?




CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Drate of incorporation;: November L5, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Nine Months ended September 30, 2008
(Unaudited — Preparcd by Managemeni)

CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Drate of incorporation: November 15, 2007}
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
Nine Manthsended September 36, 2008
(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

(<)

@

(e)

Significant Accounting Policies  (continued)
Mineral properties:

All costs related to investments in mineral properties are capitalized on a property-by-property basis, Such
costs inctude mineral property acquisition costs and exploration and development expenditures, net of any
recoveries. The costs related 1o a property from which there is production, together with the costs of
mining equipment, will be amortized using the unit-of-production method, When there is little prospect of
further work on a property being carried out by the Company cor its pariners or when a property is
abandoned or when the capitalized costs are not considered to be economically recaverable, the related
propesty costs are written down 1o the amount recoverable.

The amounts shown for mineral properties represent costs incurred 10 date, less recoveries and write-
downs, and are not intended to reflect present or future values,

Equipment:

Equipment is recorded at cost and, for that equipment subject 10 amertization, the Company uses the
declining balance method 2t rates varying from 10% to 30% anoually. Amortization on equipment used
directly on exploration projects is induded in minerat properties.

Asset retirement obligaticns:

Any statutory, contractual or other legal obligations related to the retirement of tangible long-lived assers
when such obligations are incurred, are recopnized if a reasonable estimate cof fair value can be made.
These obligaticns are measured initially at fair value and the resulting costs capitalized 1o the carrying
value of the related asset. In subsequent periods, the liability is adjusted for any changes in the amount or
timing and for the discounting of the underlying future cash flows. The capitalized asset retirement cost is
amortized 10 operations over the life of the asset. The Company assessed its mineral properties, and based
upon such assessments, there were no known material assel retirement abligations.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the eamings available to common sharcholders by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. For alt periods presented, eamings
available to common shareholders equals the reported earnings. The Company uses the treasury stock
method for calculating dilutcd earnings per share. Under the treasury stock method, the weighted average
number of comunon shares outstanding used for the calculation of diluted earnings per share assutnes that
the proceeds 10 be received on the exercise of dilutive share options and warrants are used to repurchase
common shares at the average market price during the period. In the Company’'s case, diluted earnings per
share presented is the same as basic earnings per share as the effect of outstanding options and warrants in
the earnings per share calculation would be anti-dilutive.

@)

(h)

(i}

G}

Signiftcant Accounting Pollcles  {continued)
Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial Staternents requires management to make estimates that affect the reported
zmounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant
areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to fair values and allocations in business
combinations, impairment of mineral properties, determination of reclamation obligations, and valuation
allowances for future income tax assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair value of financial instrwnents:

The fair values of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts pavable and accrued
liabilities, and notes payable approximate their carrying values due o the short tenms o maturity.

Variable interest entities:

Consolidation principles apply 10 entities that meet the deftnition of a variable interest entity (*VIE"). An
enterprise holding other than a voting interest in a VIE could. subject to cerlain conditions. be required to
consolidate the VIE if it is consideted its primary beneficiary whercby it would absorb the majority of the
VIE's expected losses, receive the majority of its expected residual returns, or both. The Campany does
not have any VIE's,

Financial instruments:
(i) CICA Handbook Section 3855 - Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement:

The standard addresses the classification, recognition and measurement of financial instruments in
the financial siatements. This standard requires all financial instrutnents within its scope
including derivatives, to be induded in the Company’s balance sheet and measured either at fajr
value on initia recognition or, in certain circumstances when fair value may not be considered
most relevant, al cost or amortized cost. Changes in fair value are recognized in the staternents of
aperations.

All financial assets and liabililies are recognized when (he entity becomes a party 1c the contract
creating the item, As such, any outstanding financial assets and tiabilities at the effective date of
adoption are recognized and measured in accordance with the new requirements as if these
requirements had always been in effect. Any changes 1o the fair valucs of assets and liabilities
prior to the adoption date are recognized by adjusting accumulated other comprehensive income.

Cara Gold Corp, Pagc g
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes 1o the Conselidated Financial Statements
Nine Months ended Sepiember 30, 2008
(Unaudited — Prepared by Management)

2. Significant Accountlng Policies  (continued)

1)) Financial instrumnents:  (continued)

()

(i)

(iif)

CICA Handbook Section 3855 - Financial Instrumnents — Recognition and Measurement:
{conttnued)

All financial instruments are classitied into one of the following five catcgories: held-for-trading,
malurity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets, or other fnancial
es. Initial and subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in the value of
financial instrumems depends on their initial classification:

. Held-1o-maturity investments, loans and receivabtes, and other financial lizbilitics are
initially tnepsured at fair value and subsequemtly measured at amortized cost
Ainortization of premiums or discounts and losses duc to impainnent are included in
curreni period net earnings;

. Available-for-szle financial assets are measured al fair value based on quoted market
prices. Investmen! in equity mstrements classified as available-for-sale that does not
lave a quoted market price in an active market is measured at cost, Revaluation gains
and losses are incleded in other comprehensive income until the asset is removed from
the balance sheet either by disposition or permanen) impainment at which time the
realized gain or loss is transferred 1o et earnings;

. Held-for-trading financial instrunents are measured at fair value. All gains anéd losses
are included in net earnings in the period in which they arise: and

. Al derivative financial instruments are classified as held-for-trading  financial
insgtruments and are measured at fair value, even when they are part of a hedging
relationship. All gains and losses are included in net eamings in the period in which they
arise.

The Company had classified its cash and cash squivalents as held-for-trading, accounts receivable
s other reccivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities as other liabilities.

CICA Handbook Section 3865 — Hedging:

This new standard specifies the circumstances under which hedge accounting is permissible and
how hedge accounting may be performed. The Company currently does not have 2ny hedges.

CICA Handbook Section 1530 - Comprehensive lncome:

Comprehensive income is the change in shareholders® equity during a period from transactions
and other events from non-owner sources. This standard requires certain gains and losses that
would otherwise be recorded as part of net eamings 10 be presented in other "comprehensive
income” s considered appropriate 10 recognize into nel eamings, This standard requires
the presentation of comprehensive income, and its components in a separate financial statement
that is displayed with the same prominence as the other financiat statements.

Caza Gold Corp.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporation: Movember | 5, 2007)
Motcs to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Mine Months ended September 30, 2008
{Unaudited — Prepared by Manag )

2. Siguificant Accountlag Polleles  {continued)

&) Mew Accounling Pronouncements:

(i}

(i)

(idi)

Capital disclosures:

In February 3007, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1538, “Capital Disclosures”, which requires
the disclosure of both qualitative and guantitative information that provides users of financial
statements wilh information to evaluate the entity’s objectives, policies and procedures for
managing capital. The new section is effective for years bepinning on or after October 1, 2007,
Mote 3 provides further details.

Financial insiryments:

In February 2007, the CICA issued two new standards, Section 3862 “Financial Instruments
Disclosures™ and Section 3863 “Financial Instruments Presentation”™. These sections replace the
cxisting Section 3861, “Financial Instruments Disclosure and Presentation”. Section 3862
provides users with information 1o evaluate the sipnificance of the financial instruments of the
eility's financial position and performances, natuwre and extent of risks arising from financial
instruments, and how the entity manages those risks. Section 3863 deals with the classification of
financial instruments, related interests, dividends, losses and gains, and the circumsiances in
which financial assets and financial lisbilities are offset. The new sections are effective for years
beginning on or after October 1, 2007. Note 4 provides further details.

Goodwill and intangiblc assels:

In February 2008, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3064 “Goodwill and intangible assets™,
replacing Section 3062, "Goodwill and other intangible assets” and Section 3450, “Research and
development costs”. This secticn establishes standards for the recognition. measurement,
presentation, and discloswre of goedwill subsequent to its initial secognition and of intangible
assets by profil-onienied enterprises.  Standards concerning goodwill are unchanyed from the
staidards included in e previous Section 3062, The new section is effective for years beginning
ot or after October 1, 3008, The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this new
section o its consctidated financial statements.

Caza Gold Comp
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Drate of incorporation: Nevember 15, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Nine Months ended September 30, 2008
{Unaudited - Prepared by Manapement)

2 Signlficant Accounting Pollties  {continued}
k) New accounting prenounceinents;  (continued)
{iv} Intermational Finaneial Reporting Standards (“[FRS™):

In 2006, the Canadian Accouning Standards Board {"AcSB") published a new strategic phan tha
will significantly affect financial reporting requirements for Canadian companies. The AcSB
siratcgic plan outlines the ¢onvergence of Canadian generally accepted acecunting principles with
IFRS over an expected five year transitional pericd. In February 2008 the AcSB announced that
2011 is the changeover date for publicly-bisted companies to use IFRS, replacing Canada'’s own
generally accepled accounting principles. The date is for interim and annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, The transition date of January |,
2011 will require the restatement for comparative purposes of amounts reported by the Company
for the year ended December 31, 201¢. While the Company has begun assessing the adeption of
IFRS for 2011, the financial reporting impact of the transition 1 IFRS cannot be reasonably
estimated at this time.

(v} Geing concermn:

In June 2007, the C1CA amended Handbook Section 1400, “General Standards of Financial
Statement Presentation”, which requires management 1o mak¢ an assessment of the Company's
ability 1o continue as a going-concern. When finaricial staternents are not prepared on a going-
concem basis, that fact shall be disclosed together with the basis on which the financial statements
are prepared and the reason why the Company is not considered a going-concem. The new
section is effective for years beginning on or after October 1, 2008. The Company is in the
process of assessing the impact of the new section en ils consolidated financial statements,

The Company does not cxpect the adeption of the standards to zesult in any material changes t¢ the
Company 's financial stalements.

k) Management of Capital

The Company’s cbjectives when managing capital are to safcguard the Company's abilily 10 continue as a going
concem in order to pursue the development and exploration of its mineral properties and to maintain a flexible
capital structure which optimizes the costs of capital at an acceptable risk.

The Company considers the componemts of sharcholders’ equity, as well as #ts cash and equivalents and notes
payable as capital, The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to them in bight of changes in
economic conditiens and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may issue equity, issue debl, acquire or dispose assets, and / or adjust the amount of
investments. The Company is not subject 1o externally-imposed capitaf requiretnents.

There were no changes 1o the Comipany's approach to capital management during the nine months ended September
30, 2008.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Noies 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
Nine Months ended September 30, 2008
(Unaudited — Prepared by M y

4. Muzagement of Fluanclal Risk

The Company (s exposed in varying degrees to a variely of financiai instrument related risks, including credit risk,
liquidity risk, &nd market risk which includes commadity price risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The
types of risk exposure and the way in which such exposure is managed are provided as follows:

{a) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of potential foss to the Company if’ the counterparty 1o a financial insirument fails to
meet its contractua) obligations.

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to its liquid financial assets including cash and cash
equivalents. The Company limits exposure to credit risk on liquid financial assets through maintaining its
cash and cash equivalents with high-credit quatity financial institations. The Company does not have
financial assets that are invested in asset-backed commercial paper.

(b} Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they becorne

due.

The Company ensures thai there is sufficient capital in order to meet short-termn business requirements,
after 1aking into account the Company's holdings of cash and cash equivalents. The Company bdievestha
these sources will be sufficicnt to cover the tikely shon-term cash requirements and commitmenis.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are due within the current operating period.
(c) Market risk:

The significant market risk exposures to which the Company is exposed are commodity price risk, foreign
exchange risk, and interest rate risk,

(i) Commodity price risk:

The value of the Company's mineral properties is dependent on the price of gold and the autlock
for this precious mineral. The Company does not have any hedging or other commedity-based
risks respecting its operations.

Market prices for this precicus metal historically have fluctuated widely and are affected by
nungrous factors outside of the Company's control, including, bul not limited to, levels of
worldwide production, shon-term changes in supply and demand, industrial and retail demand,
central bank lending, and forward sales by producers and speculaters. The Company has elected
net to actively manage its commodity price risk.

Caza Gold Corp Pape 1§




CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of incorporatien: Novcmber |5, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Nine Months ended September 30, 2008
(Unaudited - Prepared by Managcinent)

4. Management of Financial Risk  {continued)
() Marketrisk:  (coniinued)
i) Foreign exchange risk:

The Company's mineral properties which are located in Mexico would subject il to foreign
currency fluctuations including currency transaction risk and currency translation risk.

Held in Mexican Pesos

(stated in Canadian dollars
Financiat assets 3 l4¢014
Financial liabiiities {193,204
Net financial liabilities $ (53,000

Based upen the above net exposure as 1 September 30, 2008 2nd assuming all other variables
remain constant, a 10% depreciation or appreciation of the Canadian doltar relative to the Mexican
pesos could result in a decrease/increase of $5,300 in the Company's net losses.

The Company has not etmered into any agrecments or purchased any instnaments 1o hedge possible
currency risks at this time,

(i) Interest rate risk:
In respect of financial assets, the Company's policy is 1o invest cash at floating rates of interest in

cash equivalents, in order to maintain liquidity, while achieving a satisfactory return, Fluctuations
in interes! rates impact on the value of cash equivalents.

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorperation: November 15, 2007)
Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
Nine Months ended September 30, 2008
{Unaudited — Prepared by Manapetnent)
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s, Plan of Arrangement

On June 25, 2008, the Company closed the Arangement with Canarc whereby approximately 83% of Canarc’s
interest in the Company was distributed to the shareholders of Canarc. Ubder the Arrangement, Canarc transferred
all its interest in its wholly-owned Mexican subsidiary, Minera Canarc de Mexica S.A. de C.V,, which holds ail the
rights 10 the Mexican gold exploration properties {Note 6) to the Company in retumn for 14,346,800 shares of the
Company, of which Canarc distributed | 1,950,750 shares of the Company by way of & dividend in kind w Canarc's
shareholders on the basis of one share of the Company for every six shares of Canarc held by Canarc’s shareholders
a5 of the dividend record date. After the distribution, Canarc held 2,396,150 shares of the Company representing
appoximately a |7% interest in the Company at that time. The property rights which were transfesred from Canarc
to the Company include Los Angeles, Los Arrastres, Santiage and Santiage Fraction properties.

The foflowing table sets forth a preliminary allocation of the purchase price 1o assets and Nabdlities acquired, based
on preliminary estimates of fair value, Final valuation estimates of minera! propertics, contingencies and future
income tax assetxNiahilities, if any, are not yet complete due to inherent compiexity associated with the valuations.
The purchase price alloc: is preliminary and subject to adjustment over the course of 2008 an completicn af the
valuation process and analysis of resulting tax effects; such adjustments could be material 1o these financial
statements.

The preliminary fair value of assets and liabilities acquired and the consideration paid is as follows:

Fair market value of assets acquired:

Mincra Canare
deMmico 3 A de CV.

Axsets:
Cah 5 170,655
Recavablos snd prepaids 112252
Equipmant 1,157
Mincral properties 90218

Liahilitics:
Accounts payahles and other accrued liahilities {254,455)

Total 5 £22327

———
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Naotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Nine Months ended September 30, 2008
(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of meorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Nine Months ended September 30, 2008

{Unaudited — Prepared by M.

nent)

5, Plan of Arrangement  ({continued)

Consideration given:

Minera Canarc
deMoxico S.A. e €.V,

Share consideration s 301,283
Advances om acquisition 454,992
Orher consideration 66,052
Totl 5 ¥22.327

6, Mineral Propertles
{a) Los Angeles:

In April 2008, Canarc cntered into an option agreement 10 acquire a F00% interest in the La Fseondida /
Los Angeles properties by making USSL million in cash payments over a 4 year period and issuing
US$50,000 in shares of the Company over a 12 month peried. The vendors will retain a 3% NSR. Canarc
made an initial payment of US$15,000 upon the signing of the option agreement. Pursuant 1o the Plan of
Armrangement which closed in June 2008, the property was transferred to the Company (Note 5). [n October
2008, the Company issued 82,796 shares to the vendors at a deemed value of $0.25 per share and also made
a cash payment of US$25,000 to the vendaors.

(b} Los Arrastres:

In February 2007, Canarc entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Los Arrastres
gold/silver property by making US$2.5 wmillion in cash payments and spending US$2 million on
explotation over a 3 year period. The vendor will retain a 2% NSR and Canarc had the right to reduce the
NSR to 1% by paying US$! million at any time. Canarc made an initial payment of US550,000 upon the
signing of the option agreement and a furlher payment of US$75,000 in August 2007. Then in February
2008, Canarc made a cash payment of US$25,000. Pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement which closed in
June 2008, the praperty was transferred to the Comnpany {Note 5). The Company wrote-ofT the property in
the third quarter of fiscal 2008.

{c} Santiago:

In May 2007, Canarc entered into an gption agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the Santiago gold
property by making USS$2 million in cash payments over a 5 year peried and spending US$200,0040 on
exploration over a 2 year period. The vendor will retain a 2% NSR. Canarc made an initial payment of
US$30,000 was made upon the signing of the option agreement and a funther payment of US$30,000 in
November 2007. Then in May 2008, Canarc made a cash payment of US$60,000. Pursuant to the Plan of
Arrangemeni which closed in June 2008, the property was transferred ta the Company (Note 5).

Caza Gokd Corp. Page 16
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(d)

(¢

{f)

Mlinerzl Properties  {conlinued)
Santiago Fraction:

1n September 2007, Canarc entered into an option and joint venture agreemen! to acquire up 10 a 75%
interest in the Santiage Fraction propenty by issuing 15,000 common shares, paying US323,000 in cash
after 1 year, and spending up 10 US$1 millicn in exploration over a 5-year period. Canarc issued 15,000
common shares al a deemed value of $0.45 per share in 2007, Pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement which
closed in June 2008, the property was transferred to the Company {Note 3). The Company made a cash
payment of US$25,000 in September 2008,

Expenditure options;
As at September 30, 2008, to maintain the Company”s interest and to fully exercise the options under

various property agreements covering its properties, the Company must incur exploration expenditures on
the properties and/or make payments in the form of cash and/or shares to the optionors as follows:

Option' Advance Expenxiriure Number
Royalty Py o i of Shacs
(U.5. dollars} tUS dollers) {US dollers)
Los Angele (Note 6(a)) s 985,000 s - s S0,000
Santiago {Note 6{c)} 1,380,000 152,717
Santiage Fraction tNote 6id}) - 1,000,000
s 2865000 13 LISLTI7 L 50,000

These amounts may be reduced in the future as the Company determines which properties to continue to
explore and which to abandon.

Mineral properties contingencies:

The Company has diligently investigated rights of ownership of all of its mineral properties/concessions
and, 10 the best of its knowledge, all agreements relating tc such ownership rights are in good standing.
However, all properties/concessions may be subject 10 prior claims, agreements or transfers, and rights of
ownership inay be affected by undciected defects.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation: Novcmber &5, 2007)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Nine Manths ended September 30, 2008

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statcments
Nine Months ended September 30, 2008
(Unaudited - Prepared by Management)

{Unaudited — Prepared by Management)
7. Equipment
Seprumber 31, 2008
Avcunulstol  Net Book
Cest Amarnization Value
Equipment 3 oasm % 6sn $ 3957
3. Notes Payable

In December 2007, the Company received proceeds of $300,000 in demand loans of which $120,000 were from
directors and officers of the Company. The loans were repayable on demand and bore an interest rate of 9% per
anmnum.

On July 31, 2008, the Company settled the pnncipal of $280,000 in demand loans by the issuance of 2.8 million
units at a deemed price of $0.10 per unit. Each unit was comprised of one commeon share and one-half of a whale
share purchase warrant; each warrant is exercisable to acquire one common share at $0.12 until January 31, 2010.
The remaining principal of $20,000 was paid in cash, and all accreed interest of $17,129 as of July 31, 2008 was
paid in cash.

92 Share Capital
{a} Authorized and issued:

The authorized share capital of the Company is comprised of unlimited common shares without par value.

Om July 31, 2008, the Company settied the principal of $280.000 in demand loans by the issuance of 2,8
million units at a deemed price of $0.10 per unit. Note 8 provides further details,

On September 30, 2008, the Company closed a private placement for 4.6 million units at a price of $0.25
pet unit. Each unit was comprised of one common share and one-haif of 2 whole share purchase warrant;
each warrant is excrcisable k& acquire one cormon share at $0.35 and expire March 30, 2080.

In October 2008, the Company issued 82,796 shares at a deemed value of $0.25 per share for the Los
Angeles property. Note 6{a) provides further details.

Common shares issued for consideration cther than cash are recorded at a deemed value of 1he shares as of
the agreement date.
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9. Share Capital  (continued)
(b} Warrants:

At Seplember 30, 2008, the Company had outstanding warrants as follows;

Exavise Cuisanding at Dutstanding at
Prices Expiry Dates December 1. 2007 Dssued Exacised Expired September 30, 2008
5012 Jauary 31, 2010 - 1,400,000 - - 1400000
$03%  March 30, 2000 - 2,300,000 - - 2310000

371000 - - 3,710,000

10, Related Party Transactions

Related party transactians duzing the nine months ended Septermber 30, 2008 include:

- $32,273in salaries paid to the directors of the Company;

- 367,626 in legat fees 10 a law firm in which a senior officer of the Company is a partner;
- $35,179 in salaries 10 companies with one common director; and

- $59,361 in remt to companies with one common director.

Principal of $110,000 in demand loans awed to the directors of the Company were seitled by the issuance of units
{Note 8).

Details of the Arrangement between the Company and Canarc are provided in Note 5.

11 Segment Disclosures

The Company has on¢ operating segment, being mineral exploration, and substantially all assets of the Company are
located in Canadz except for mineral properttes as disclosed in Note §.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.
{the “Company™}

Management’s Discussion and Anzlysis
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008

Certain Stalements conlained herein regarding the Company and its operations constitute “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the United States Privale Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, All statements that are not
historical facts, including without limitation statements regarding fulure estimates, plans, objectives, assutmptions or
expectations of future performance, are “forward-locking statements”. We caution you that such “forward locking
statements” invoive known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and future events to differ
materiaily from those enticipated in such statemems. Such risks and uncerfainties include fluctuations in precious metal
prices, unpredictable results of exploration activities, uncertainties inherent in the estimation of mineral reserves and
resources, fluctuations in the costs of goods and services, problems associated with exploration and mining operations,
changes in legal, social or political conditions in the jurisdictions where the Company operales, lack of appropriate funding
and other risk factors, as discussed in the Company’s filings with Canadian Securities regulatory agencies, The Company
expressly disclaims any obligation to update any forward-looking statements.

1.0 Prellminary Lnformation
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A"} of Caza Gold Corp. (the “Company ™} should be read in

conjunetion with the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial staiements for the nine months ended September 30,
moow.S,Enr»-dm—.m:m_u_an_:.ﬁmmD}Ns.a&m:nB,..

All financial information in this MD&A is prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
{“CAD GAAP™), and all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

All information contained in the MD&A is as of November 14, 2008 unless otherwise indicated.

11 Packgronnd

The Company was incorpotated on November 15, 2007 under the law's of British Colurnbia and is engaged in the acguisition,
exploration, development and exploitation of precious metal properties in Mexico. The Company currently owns or holds,
directly or indiregily, interests in precious metal properties, known as La Escondida / Los Angeles, Santiago and Santiago
Fraction, in Mexico, which were acquired pursuani 1o the Ptan of Arrangement (the "Ammangement”) between lhe Company
and its previous parent company, Canarc Resource Corp. (“Canarc™). The Plan of Arrangement closed on June 25, 2008,

Plan of Arrangement:

On June 25, 2008, the Company closed the Arrangement with Canare wheteby approxintately 8326 of Canarc's interest in the
Company was disiributed 10 the shareholders of Canarc. Under the Arrangement. Canare wansferred all its interest in its
wholly-owned Mexican subsidiary, Minera Canare de Mexico 5.A. de C.V., which holds alt the rights to the Mexican gold
explormion properties to the Company in return for 14,346,800 shares of the Company, of which Canarc distributed
11,950,750 shares of thc Company by way of a dividend in kind te Canarc’s shareholders on the basis of one share of the
Company for every six shares of Canarc held by Canarc’s shareholders as of the dividend record date. Canarc continues to
hoki 2,396,150 shares of the Company which has been diluted (o approximately a 11% inlerest in the Company by the end of
the third guarier of fiscal 2008.

CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 3008

The following table sets forth a preliminary allocation of the purchase price to assets and liabilities acquired, based on
preliminary estimates of fait value. Final valuation estimates of mineral properlies, contingencies and future income tax
asseis/liabilities, if any, are not yet complete duc 1o inherent complexity associated with the valuations. The purchase price
allocation is preliminary and subject to adjustment over the course of 2008 on completion of the valuation process and
analysis of resulting tax effects; such adjustments could be material to these financial statements,

The preliminary fair value of assets and liabilities acquired and the consideration paid is as follows:

Fair market value of assets acquired:

Minera Canare
de Mexivo S.A de C V.

Assets
Cash 5 170,635
Receivables and propaids 112352
Equipment 157
Mineral propertics 190218
Lisbilitics:
Acrounts payables and other sccrued liabilities (254.455)
Towat 5 822317
T —
Consideration given:
Mincra Canarc
de Mexjco 5.A deC.V.
Share comgideration 5 101,283
Advaces on acquirilion 454991
‘Other convideration 6,052
Tolal 5 §22.311

L2 Overnll Performance

As the Company 3 focused on its exploration activities, there is no production, sales or inventory in the conventional sense,
The recoverability of costs capitalized 10 mineral properties and the Company’s future financial success will be dependent
upon the extent to which it can discover mineralization and determine the econcmic viability of developing such properties.
Such development may take years to complete and the amourt of resulting income, if any. is difficult te determine with any
certainty at this time. Many of the key factors are outside of the Company’s control. The sales value of any mineratization
discovered and devcloped by the Company is largely dependent upon factors beyond the Company’s control such as the
market prices of the metals produced. As the camrying value and amortization of mineral properties and capital assets are,
part, refated to the Company’s mineral rescrves and resources, if any, the estimation of such reserves and resources is
significant 1o the Company's position and results of operations.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008

CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incarporation: Novemnber 15, 2007)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008

Gold prices continued 10 show strength as the cumulative annual average increased from US$445 in fiscal 2005 to LJS5603 in
fiscal 2006 and US$695 in 2007, closing at US$748 on November 14, 2008. Gold prices achieved new highs in each of the
past several years, In late 2005, prices reached a high of US$537. then US$725 in May 2006 and US$341 in November 2007
hefore reaching a high of USS1,0i 1 in March 2008.

Los Angeles property

In April 2008, Canarc entered into an opticn agreement L0 acquire a 100% interest in the La Fscondida / Los Angeles
propertics by making US$1 million in cash payments over a 4 year period and issuing US$30,000 in shares of the Company
cver a 12 month period. The vendors will retain a 3% NSR, Canarc made an initial payment of U5$15,000 upon the signing
of the opticn agreement. Pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement which clesed in Jurne 2008, the property was transferred to the
Company, In Qctober 2008, the Company issued 82,796 shares te the vendors at a deemed value of $0.25 per share and also
made a cash payment of [J8$25,000 to the vendors.

Los Arrasires property

In February 2007, Canare entered into an option agreement to acquire a 10084 interest in the Los Arrastres gold/silver
properly by making US$2.5 million in cash payments and spending 1JS$2 million on exploration over a 3 year period. The
vendor will retain a 2% NSR and Canarc had the right te reduce the NSR 1o 1% by paying US$1 million at any time. Canarc
thade an initial payment of US$50,000 upon the signing of the option agreement and a firther payment of US$75,000 in
Aupust 2007, Then in February 2008, Canarc made & cash payment of US$25,000. Pursuant to the Amangement which
closed in June 2008, the property was transferred to the Company. The Company wrotc-off the property in the third quarter
of fiscal 2008.

Santiago property

In May 2007, Canarc entered into an option agreement 1o acquire a 100%% interest in the Santiage geld property by making
UiS$2 million in cash payments over a 5 year period and spending US$200,000 cn exploration over a 2 year period. The
vendor will retain a 2%% NSR. Canarc made an initial payment of US$30,000 upon the signing of the option agreement and a
further payment of US$30,000 in Novemnber 2007. Ther in May 2008, Canarc made a cash payment of US$60,000,
Pursuant to the Amrangement which ¢losed in June 2008, the property was transferred to the Company.

Santiago Fraction properiy

In September 2007, Canarc entered into an option and jeint venture agreemnent 16 acquire up 1o a 75% interest in the Santiago
Fraction property by issuing 15,000 common shares, paying US$25,000 in cash afler | year, and spending up to US$1
million in exploration over a 5-year period. Canarc issued 15,000 comiiton shares at a deemed value of $0.45 per share in
2007, Pursuant ta the Amrangement which closed in Jure 2008, the property was transferred to the Comtpany. The Company
made a cash payment of US525,000 in September 2008.

All financtal information is prepared in accordance with CAD GAAP, and all dellar amounts are expressed in Canadian
dollars unless otherwise indicated.

From November |5, 2007
10 December 31, 2007

Total revatines H

Income (less) before discontinued operalions and extraordinary ilems:

{iy Tonal 5 (27.469)
{ii) Basic per share 5 (274 69)
{iii} Fully diluted per share 5 {274.6%)

Hd incoste (loas):

3 {27.46%)
per share H (274.69)
Fully diluted per share 3 {274.6%)
Tota) essets 3 300,234
Tou) long-term Liabilities 5 -
Dividends per share b} -

Third Quarter of Fiscal 2008 — Nine months ended September 30, 2008

The Company incurred a net Loss of $1.05 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, of which $813,000 was
aitributable to the write off of the Los Armastres property which was acquired from Canarc from the Plan of Amangement.
Expenses of $97,000 were incurred for legal services for the Plan of Arrangement. Such expenses were shared beiween the
Company and Canare, Employee remuneration was related to the generai administration of the Company as well as in
deveioping and implementing exploration programs for its Mexican properties, Corporate development reflects active due
diligence and property evaluations in Mexico for acquisitions and 1o identify properties of merit for possible acquisitions.
Property investigation increased in the third quarter relative to prior quarters in fiscal 2008 for the Company’s renewed
efforts to expand its exploration focus in Mexico, Interest expense was attribytable to the demand loans which bore an
interest rate of 9% per annum in which $280,000 in notes payable were settled by the issuznce of 2.8 million units a1 $0.1¢
per unit, comprised of cne commen share and one-half’ of 8 whole share purchase warrant, and the balance of the principal
including all accrued interest were setiled by cash.

The Comparty has no soutces of operating revenues,

As a1 September 30, 2008, the Company has mineral propertics which are comprised of the following:

Cara Gold Corp Page}
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorporation; November 15, 2007)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Nine Months Fnded September 30, 2008

Los Los Santtage
Angeles Arrsstres Santlage Fraction Totsl

Acgubsition Costs:

Balance, beginning of period 5 -5 - 3 - 8 -8 -
Plan of mrzngoment 15,508 169,379 127.659 7603 320,147
Option paymsent - 82,500 - 235999 108,499
Write-off - (251.879) - . _(251,879)

Balence, ending of period 15,506 - 127,659 33602 V76,767

Deferred Explaration Expenditures:

Balance, beginning of period - - - - .
Plan of amangement - 418,507 50,754 - 470,071
Assays and suiveys - 5,497 293 - 3,79
Consuliants - 4,360 - - 4,360
Surface taxes - 105,912 - - 105,912
We-ofl - {561,086) - - (361,086)

Balance, ending of period - - 51,47 - 51,047

Bincrsl properties. endiog of perlad s 15506 § -8 178,706 § N"602 S 227,814

At September 30, 2008, to maintain its interest and 1o fully exercise the options under vanous property agreements covering
the properties located in Mexico, the Company must incur exploration expenditares on the properties and/or make payments
in the form of cash and/or shares to the optionors as follows:

Option‘Advance Expenditure Numhar
Royatty Paymonis Coomitments of Sharcs
{U.S. dollans) (US dolars) (US dolbars)
Los Angdes 5 585,000 $ - 5 50,000
Santingn L REQ, (X0 152,117
Santiago Fraction - 1.000.000 -
5 2,865,001 5 LES2,TIT 5 SU,000

These amounts may be reduced in the future as the Company detesmines which properties to continue to explore and whiclt
10 bandon.

1.5 Summary of Quarterty Results

All financial information is prepared in accordance with CAD GAAP, and all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian
dollars unless otherwise indicated.
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorporation: November 15, 2001
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For thte Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008

The following table provides selected financial information of the Company for each of the last four quarters ended at the
most recently completed quarter, Scptember 30, 2008:

2008 From Nov [ 5, 2007
Sept. 30 June 30 Mar 31 to Dec 31. 2007
Tola! revenues 5 - 5 - 3 - s -
Income {losa ) before discontinued
discontinued operations and
extrzardioary iloms:
it Totat $ (509,532) & {60,949} § (7625 H (27.469)
{ii) Basic per share - {0.06) 008 5 (761.39) 3 271469
{iii) Fully diluted
per share H t0.06) & 008 8 (762.39) 5 (274.62)
Net income {doss):
{i) Towl 5 ($09.532) § 60949) § (76.239) 3 (27.469)
{il) Baxic per share 5 {006) & (008) % {762.59) $ (21469
(iil) Pully diluted
per share 5 {0.06) § (0.08) 5 {T62.59) 5 {27469
Tatal asscts s 912,467 § 1,316,763 S 233307 $ 300,234
Tozal Tong-lerm liahilities 5 - 5 - 3 . 5 -
Dividends per share s - s - 1 - s -

At incorporation on November 15, 2007, the Company issued 100 shares at $0.01 per share to Canarc. Pursuanl to the
Arrangement which closed on June 23, 2008, the Company issued 14,346,800 shares to Canarc to acquire the Mexican
propertics. The effect of the equity distribution is reflective in the significant change in the quarterty loss per sharc in the
second quarter of hscal 2008 and thereafler,

The Company is in the developmem stage and has not yet determined whether its mineral properties contain reserves thai are
economically recoverable. The recoverability of amounts capitalized for mineral propenics is entirely dependent upon the
existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company te obtain the necessary financing to complete the
developmem and upon future profitable production. The Company knows of no trends, demands, commitinents, evems or
uncertainties that may result in the Company’s liquidity either materially increasing or decreasing at the present time or in the
foreseeable future. Material increases or decreases in the Company’s liquidity are substantially determined by the success or
failure of the Company’s exploration programs and overall market conditions for smaller mineral exploration companies.
Since its incorporation in 2007, the Company has endeavored to secure mineral properties that in due course could be brought
into production o provide the Company with cash flow which would be used to undertake work programs on other projects,
Te that end, the Company has expended its funds on mineral properties that it believes have the potential to achieve cash
Mow within a reasonable time frame. As a result, the Company has incurred losses during each of its fiscal periods since
incorporation. This result is typical of smaller exploration comparies and will continue unless positive cash fiow is achieved.

The following table contains selecied financial information of the Company's liquidity:
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorperation: November 15, 2007)
Management's Discussion and Analysis

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008

Sepiember 30, December 31,

2008 2001
Cash and cash equivalents b3 577,881 5 299,810
Working capital (deficiency) b 479,355 $ {27,468)

Ongoing cperating ex penses continue to reduce the Company’s cash resources and working capital.

In December 2007, the Company received proceeds of $300,000 in demand loans of which $120,000 were from directors and
officers of the Company. The loans were repayable on demand and bare an interest rate of 9% per anum. On July 3 I, 2008,
the Company settled the principal of $280,000 in demand loans by the issuance of 2.8 million units at a deemed price of
$0.10 per unit. Each unit was comprised of one common share and one-hal{ of a whole share purchase warrant; each watrant
is exercisable to acquire one common share at $0.12 until Janvary 31, 2030, The remaining principal of $20,000 and all
accrued intesest of $17,129 as of July 3t, 2008 were paid in cash.

On September 30, 2008, the Company closed a private placement for 4,6 million units at a price of $0.25 per unit. Each unit
was comptised of one common share and one-hatf of a whole share purchase warrani; each warrant is exercisable to acquire
one common share at $0.35 and expire on March 30, 2010.

The Company has a number of option agreements for mineral properties that invoive payments in the form of cash and/or
shares of the Company as well as minimum exploration expenditure requirements. Under ltem 1.4, further details of
contractual obligations are provided as at September 30, 2008, The Company will continue te rely upon equity financing as
its principal source of financing its projects.

Itemn 1.6 provides further details,

18 -Bal n

There are noknown off-balance sheet amrangements which have not been disclosed.

Related party transactions during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 include:

- $32,273 in salaries paid to the directors of the Company;

- $67,626 in legal fees to a law firm in which a senior officer of the Company is a partner;
- $35.179 in salaties to companies with one common director; and

- $%9,361 in rent to companies with one commen director.

Principal of $110,000 in demand loans owed to the directors of the Company were seftied by the issuance of units. Item 1.6
provides further details.

Details of the Arrangement between the Company and Canarc are provided in Item 1.1,
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(Dxate of [ncorporation; November 15, 2007)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Ning Months Ended September 30, 2008

110 Third Owarter

tiems 1.4, 1.5 and 1.6 provide Turther details for the third quarter of fiseal 2008.

1.11  Proposed Transactions
There are no proposed material asset or business acquisitions or dispositions, other than those in the ordinary course and

other than those aiready disclosed in this MD&A, before the board of directors for consideration, and other than those already
disclosed in its regulatory and public filings.

112

The preparation of financial staternents requires the Company to make estimates that affect the reparted amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring the use of estimates relate to fair
values and allocations in business combinations, mineral properties, detennination of reciamation obtigations, fair vatues of
finaneial instruments, and valuation allowances for future income tax assets. Actuat results could differ from those estimates.

Acquisition costs of mineral properties and exploration and development expenditures incurred thereto are capitalized and
deferred.  The costs related to a properly from which there is production will be amortized using the unit-of-production
method, Capitalized costs are written down Lo their estimated recoverable amount if the property is subsequently determined
to be unecenomic. The amounts shown for mineral properties represent costs incurred to date, less recoveries and write-
downs, and do not refiect present or future values.

New accounting pronouncements are as feliows:
(i) Capital disclosures:

In February 2007, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1535, “Capital Disclosures™, which requires the disclosure of
both qualitative and quantitative information that provides users of financial statements with information te evaluate
the entity’s objectives, pelicies and procedures for managing capital. The new section is effective for years
begmning o or after October 1, 2007,

(i) Financial instruments:

In February 2007, the CICA issued two new sandards, Section 3862 “Financial Instuments Disclosures” and
Section 3863 “Financial Instruments Presentation™, These sections replace the existing Section 3861, “Financial
Instruments Disclosure and Presentation™ Section 3862 provides users with information to evaluate the significance
of the financial instruments of the entity’s financial position and perfornances, nature and extent of risks arising
from financial instuments, and how the entity manages those risks. Section 3863 deals with the classification of
financial instruments, retated interests, dividends, losses and gains, and the circumstances in which financial assets
and financial liabilities are offset. The new sections are effective for years beginning on or afier October 1, 2007.

(iii) Goodwill and intangible assets:
In February 2008, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3064 “"Goeodwill and intangible assets”, replacing Section

3062, “Goodwill and other intangible assets™ and Section 3450, “Rescarch and development costs”™. This section
establishes standards for (he recoguition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of goodwill subsequent 1o its
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorpoeration: November 13, 2007}
Management”s Discussion and Aralysis

Far the Nine Months Ended Scptember 30, 2008

initial recognition and of intangible assets by profit-oriented emerprises.  Standards concerning goodwill are
unchanged from the standards included in the previous Section 3062, The new section is effective for years
beginning on or after October |, 2008. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of this new section on
its consolidated financial statements.

(iv} Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {(“IFRS™):

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board ("AcSB”) published a new strategic plan that will significantly
affect financial reporting requirements for Canadian companics. The AcSB strategic plan cutlines the convergence
of Canadian genesally accepted accounting principles with IFRS over an expected five year transitional period. In
February 2008 the AcSB announced that 2011 is the changeover date for publiclylisted companies 1o use IFRS,
replacing Canada’s own generally accepled aceounting principles, The date is for interim and annual firancial
stzlements relating to fiscal years begitring oo ot after January 1. 2011, The transition date of January 1, 20011 will
require the restateinent for comparative purpeses of amounts reported by the Comparny for the year ended Decanber
31, 2010. While the Company has begun assessing the adoption of [FRS for 2011, the financial reporting impact of
the transitien to IFRS cannot be reasonably estimated at this time,

[£9] Going concem:

In June 2007, the CICA amended Handbook Section 1400, “General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation”,
which requites management 1o make an asscssment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going-concem, When
financial statements are not prepared on a going-concarn basis, that fact shall be disclosed together with the basis on
which the financial statements are prepared and 1he reason why the Company is not considered a going-concern.
The new section is effective for years beginning on or after Octoher 1, 2008, The Company s in the process of
assessing the fmpact of the new section on its consolidated financial staternents.

The Company does not expect the adoption of the standards to result in any material changes to the Company’s financial
statemnents.

L14  Floancial Justcuments aud Other Instrymients
The Company's financial instruments approximate their carying values.
The Company classifies its financial instruments as fellows:

- cash and cash equivalents as held-for-trading,
- accounts receivable as other receivables, and
- accounts payable and accrued liabilities as other liabilities,

The Company is exposed in varying degrees 10 a variety of financial instrument refated risks. The Corpany's credit risk is
primarily attributable to i1s liquid financial assets inciuding cash and equivalents. The Company limits exposure to credit risk
on liquid financial assets through maintaining its cash and cash equivalents with high-credit quality financial institutions.
The Company does not have financial assets that arc invested in asset backed commercial paper. o respect of financial
assets, the Company's policy is to invest cash at floating rates of inferest in cash equivalents, in order to maintain tiquidity,
while achieving a satisfactory retumn. Fluctuations in interest rates impact on the valve of cash equivalents,

Ttems |.13 provide further details of financial instrznents.

LIS (Mber MD&A Regulrements

CAZA GOLD CORP.

{Date of Incorporation: November 15, 20067}
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Nine Months Ended Seplember 30, 2008

1151 Other MD&A Reguirements

Additional information refating to the Company are as follows:

fa) may be found on SEDAR at www sedarcom; and

(b} wwp_...mmoﬂ_dei& in the Company's unaudited consolidated financial staternents for the nine months ended September

1.15.2 OQutstanding Share Data

The Company™s authorized share capital consists of unlimited coinmon shares without par value.

Changes in the Company s share capital {or the nine months ended September 30, 2008 are as follows:

Number of Shares Amount
Balance at December 31, 2007 100 s 1
Issued:
Plan of amangement 14,346,800 01,283
Shares fordebt - 2,800,000 280,K0
Private pl 4,620,000 §,1 37,000
Balance 31 September 30, 2008 21,766,900 $ L7IRZM

At November 14, 2008, there were 21.766.900 common shares issued and outstanding.

At September 30, 2008, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchese an aggregate of 3,710,000 common shares as
follows:

Exercise Ouwamding a0 Qutslanding a1
Pricea Expiry Dalcs Dexzomihal 31, 2007 Issued Exercisod Expital Septemba 30, 2008
$0.02  Jamuzry 31,2010 - 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000
$035  March 30,2010 - 2,310.000 - - 2,1H0.K0)

1.710.000 - - 2,710,000

Al November 14, 2008, warrants For 3,710,000 commen shares remain oulstanding.

At September 30, 2008, the Company has not granted any stock optians.

116 Qutlgok

Although it currently has sufficient capital to satisfy existing operating and administrative expenses in the short temm, the
Company will continue te depend upon equity capital 1o finance its existing projects. There are no assurances that capita!
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CAZA GOLD CORP.

(Date of Incorporation: November 15, 2007)
Management’s [tiscussion and Analysis

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008

requirements will be met by this means of financing as inheremt risks are attached therein including commodity prices,
finaneial market conditions, and general economic factors. The Company does not expect 1o realize any operating revenues
from its properties in the foreseeable future.

117 Risk Factors

The following is a brief discussion of those distinctive or special characteristics of the Company’s eperations and industry
that inay have a material impact on, or constitute risk factors in respect of, the Company s future fingncial performance.

Exploration and Development Risks

There is no assurance given by the Company that its exploration and development programs and properties will result in the
discovery, development or production of a comimercially viable ore body.

The business of exploration for minerals and mining imvolves a high degree of risk, Few properlies that are explored are
ultil Iy developed inte producing mines, There is ne assurance that the Company's mineral exploration and development
ties will result in any discoveries of bodies of commercial ore. The economics of developing gold and other mineral
properties are affected by many factors inciuding capital and operating costs, variations of the grades and tonnages of ore
mined, fluctuating mineral market prices, costs of mining and processing equipment and such other factors as government
regulations, including regulations relating to 1oyalties, allowable production, importing and exporting of minerals and
environmental protection. Substantial expenditures are required to establish reserves through drilling and other work, to
develop metallurgical processes to extract metal from ore, and to develop the mining and processing facilities and
infrastructure at any site chosen for mining. Ne assurance can be given that funds required for development can be obtained
on a timely basis. The marketability of any minerals acquired or discovered may be affected by numerous factors which are
beyond the Company’s control and which cannot be accurately foreseen or predicted, such as market fluctuations, the global
marketing conditions for precious and base metals, the proximity and capacity of milling and smelting facilities, mineral
markets and processing equipment, and such gther factors as govermment regulations, including regulaticns relating to
royalties, allowable production, importing and exporting minerals and environmental protection. In order to commence
exploitation of certain properties presently held under exploration concessions, it is necessary for the Company to apply for
exploitation concessions. There can be ne guarantee that such concessions witl be granted,

Financing Risks

There is no assurance given by the Company that it will be able 1o secure the financing necessary to explore, develop and
produse its mineral properties,

The Company does not presently have sufficient financial resources or operating cash-flow to umdentake by itself all of its
planned explotation and development programs. The development of the Company's properties may therefore depend on the
Contpany’s joint venture partners and on the Company’s ability to obtain additional required financing. There is no
assurance the Company will be successful in oblaining the required financing, the lack of which could result in the loss or
substantial dilution of its interests (as existing or as proposed io be acquired) in its properties as disclosed herein, The
Company's ability %0 continue as & going concern is dependent on the ability of the Company to raise equity capital
financings, the attainmen of profitable operations, external financings, and further share issuance to satisfy working capital
and operating needs,

Estimages of Mineral Deposits
There is no assurance given by the Cotmpany that any estimates of minetal deposits herein will not change,
Mo assurance ¢an be given that any identified mineralized deposit will ever quatify as a commercially viable mineabte ore

hody that can be legally and economically exploited. Estimates regarding mineralized deposits can also be affected by many
factors such as permitting regulations and requirernents, weather, envisonmental factors, unforeseen technical difficulties,
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unusual or unexpected geological formations and work interruptions. 1o addition, the grades and tormages of ore ultimately
mined may differ from that indicated by drilling results and other work. Ther¢ can be no assurance that gold recovered in
small-scale laboratory tests will be duplicated in large-scale tests under on-site conditions. Material changes in mineralized
tonnages, grades, dilution and stripping ratios of recovery rates may affect the economic viability of projects. The existence
of mineralized deposits should not be interpreted 2s assurances of the future delineation of ore reserves or the profitability of
future operations.

Mireral Prices
There is no assurance given by the Company that mineral prices will not change.

The miring industry is competitive and mineral prices fluctuzate so that there is no assurance, ¢ven if commercial quantities of
a mineral resource are discovered, that a profitable market will exist for the sale of same. Factors beyond the conteal of the
Company may affect the marketability of any substances discovered. The prices of precious and base metals fluctuate on a
daily basis, have experienced votatile and significant price movements over short periods of time, and are affected by
numerous factors beyond the control of the Company, including international economic and political trends, expectations of
inflation, currency exchange {luctuations {specifically, the U.S. dollar relative to other currencies), interest rates, central bank
transactions, world supply for precious and base metals, intemational investments, monetary systems, and global or regional
consumpticn pattems (such as the development af gold coin programs), speculative activities and increased production due to
improved mining and production methods. The supply of and demand for gold are affected by various factors, including
political events, economic canditions and production costs sn major gold producing regions, and governmental policies with
respect to gold holdings by a nation or its ¢itizens. The exact effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicted, and the
cembination of these factors may result in the Company not receiving adequate returns on invested capital or the invesiments
retaining their respective values. There is ne assurance that the prices of gold and other precious and base metals will be such
that the Company's properties can be mined at a profit.

Conflicts af intcress

There is no assurance given by the Company that its directors and officers will not have conflicts of interest from time 10
time.

The Company's directors and officers may serve as directors or officers of other public resource Companies or have
significant shareholdings in other public resource companies and, to the extent that such other companies may participate in
ventures in which the Company may participate, the directors of the Company may have a conflict of interest in negotiating
and concluding terms respecting the extent of such participation. The interests of these companies may differ from time to
time, In the event that such a conflict of intcrest arises at a meeting of the Company’s directors, a director who has such a
conflict will abstain from vating for or against any resolution involving any such confliet. From time 10 time several
companies may participate in the aequisition, expleration and developmem of natural resource properties thereby allowing
for their participation m Larger programs, permitting involvement in a greater number of programs and reducing financial
exposure in respect of any one program. 1t may also occur that a particular company will assign all or a portion of its interest
in a particular program to ancther af these companies due to the financial position of the company making the assignment. In
accordance with the laws of the Province of British Cehumbia, Canada, the directors of the Company are required to act
henestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the Company, [n determining whether or not the Company will participate
in any particular exploration or mining project at any given tine, the directors will primarily consider the upside potential for
the project to be aceretive (o shareholders, the degree of risk to which the Company may be exposed and its financial position
at that titme,

Uninsured Risks

There is no assurance given by the Company that it is adequately insizred against all risks.
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The Company may become subject 1o liability for cave-ins, pollution or other hazards against which it cannct insure or
against which it has eleeted not to insure because of high premium costs or other reasons. The payment of such liabilities
would reduct the funds available for exploration and mining activities.

Environmenral and other Othicr Regulatory Requirements
There is nc assurance piven by the Company that it has met all environmental or regulatory requirements.

The cwrent o future operations of the Company, including exploration and development activities and commencement of
production cn its properties, require permits from various foreign, federal, state and local governinental authorities and such
operations are and will be poverned by laws and regulations governing prospecting, develepment, mining, production,
exporls, laxes, labour siandards, occupaticnal health, waste disposal, toxic substances, land use. envircamental protection,
thine safety and other matiers, Companies engaged in the development and cperation of mines and related facitities generatly
experience increased costs. and delays in production and other schedules as a result of the need to comply with applicable
laws, regulations and permits. There can be no assurance that approvals and permits required in order for the Company 10
commence production on its various properties will be obtained. Additional permits and studies, which may include
environmental impact studies conducted before permits can be oblained, are necessary prior 1o operation of the other
properties in which the Company has interests and there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain or
naintain all necessary permits that may be required to commence construction, development or eperation of mining facilities
at these properties on terms which enable cperations to be conducted at economically justifiable costs.

Failure to comply with applicable Laws, regulations, and permitling requirements may result in enforcement actions including
orders issued by regulatory or judicial autherities causing operations (o cease of be curtailed, and may include corrective
measures requiring capital expenditures, istallation of additional equipinent or remedial actions. Parlies engaged in mining
operations may be required 10 compensate those suffering loss or damage by reason of the mining activities and may have
civil ot eriminal fines or penalties imposed for violations of 2pplicable laws or regulations. New laws or Tegulations or
amendments to current laws, regulations and permils goveming operalions and activities of mining companies, or more
stringent {mplementation of current laws, regulations or permits, could have a material adverse impact oo the Company and
cause increases in capital expenditures or production cosis of reduction in levels of production at preducing properties or
require abandomment or delays in developiment of new mining properties.

Reclamation

There is a risk thal monies alloited for land reclamation may not be sufficient to cover all risks, due to changes in the nature
of the waste rock or tailings and/or revisions 1o govemment regulations. Therefore additional funds, or reclamaticon bonds or
other forns of financial assurance may be required over the tenure of the project 1o cover potential risks. These additional
costs may have matertal adverse impact on the financial condition and resulls of the Company.

Foreign Countries and Regulatory Requirements

Certain of the Company ‘s properties are located in countries outside of Canada, and mineral expleraticn and mining activilies
may be affected in varying degrees by political stability and government regulations relating 1o the mining industry. Any
changes in regulations or shifis in political atiftudes may vary from country to couniry ard are beyond the control of the
Company and may adversely affect its business. Such changes have, in the pasy, included nationalization of foreign cwned
businesses and properties. Operations may be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with respect to
restrictions on production, price controls, export controls, income and other taxes and duties, expropriation of property,
environmental legistation and mine safety. These uncertainties may make it more difficutt for the Company and is joint
venture partrers to obtain any required production financing for i1s mineral properties.

Currency Fluctuation and Fereign Exchange Controls

Cara Gold Corp. Page 13

The Company maintains a pertion of its funds in U.S. dollar denotninated accounts, Certain of the Company®s property and
related contracts are dencminated in U.S. dollars, The Company's operations in countries other than Canada are normally
carried cut in the currency of that country and make the Company subject 1o foreign cumency fluctuations and such
fluctuations may materially affect the Company's financial position and results. In addition {uture contracls may not be
denominated in U.S. dollars and may expose the Company to foreign currency fluctuations and such fluctuations tmay
naterially affect the Cotnpany’s financial pesition and results. Tn addition, the Company is or may become subject to foreign
exchange restrictions which may severely limit or restrict its ability to repatriate capital or profits from its properties outside
of Canada to Canada, Such restrictions have exisied in the past in countries in which the Company holds property inferests
and future impesitions of such restrictions could have a materially adverse effect on the Company's future profitability or
ability to pay dividends.

Third Paryy Reliance

The Company’s rights te acquire interests in certain mineral properties have been granted by third parties who themselves
hold only an option te acquire such propertics. As a result, the Company may have ne direct coniractual relationship with the
underl ying property helder.
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FORM 52-109F2 — Certificatlon of Interim Filings

Venture Issuer Basie Cerliflcate

1, Bradford ), Cooke, the Chief Executive Officer n;.nm..Nh Gold Corp., certify the following;

I. Review: | have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MD&A (together the
interim filings) of Caza Gold Com. {the “Issuer”) for the interim period ending September 30,
2008;

2. No misrepresentations: Based on mny knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the
interim filings do nol contain any untrue staternent of a material fact or omif to state a material
fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statemnent not misleading in light of the
circumstances under which it was made, for the period covered by the interim filings;

3 Falir presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim
financial statements together with the other financial informatien included in the interim filings

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the Issuer, as of the date and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

Date: November 17, 2008

/s/  Bradford Cooke

Bradford J. Cooke, Chief Executive Qfficer

FORM 52-109F2 - Certtfication of Interim Fillngs

Yenture Issuer Basic Certificate — _ —

I. Philip Yee, the Chief Financial Officer of Caza Gold Comp., certify the following:

1. Review: [ have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MD&A (together the
interim filings) of Caza Gold Comp. (the “Issuer”™) for the interim period ending September 30,
2008;

2, Mo misrcpresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the
interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the
circumstznces under which it was made, for the period covered by the interim filings:

3. Falr presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonabie diligence, the interim
financial statements together with the other financial information included in the interim filings

fairty present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the 1ssuer, as of the date and for the periods presented in the interim filings;

Date: November 17, 2008

s/ Philip Yee

Philip Yee. Chief Financial Officer

NOTE TO READER
In comrast in the roquircd wundes Multil ] | 52-1t13 Certi fan of Disclene in ?#3. Anntmrd amd Interien Filings (ML
52-10%), this Vamhure {suer Basic Certificate decs mat include top jona eelating o the blish and of disckysure
cottrols and procedures (DC&P) b miernal comral over financial reporting (ICFR), as .rmun_ m ML 52- _.ua In ferticedar, the cenifying
offiocrs hling this certificme are no making sny rep relating 1o the E
it cootrols and other procedures designal to provide hl tha i iom required to be disclosed by the isuer in its
amual filingx, terim (ings or other reponts Blod of suk 1 wader ies legisl. B recorded, fwocessod, summarized md

reported within the time paiods specified i securiies legislation: axd

iy » procets 10 provide reasonable ng the roliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finmcial For
extomual purposes in sccordznce with the wsurr's GAAP.

The ixsuer s cemtifying officers are responsible for cosuring that the procetses are in place 16 provide them with suilicien knowledge o support
the represcntations they are making in this cortificate,

Investors should be awarc that inherem lisiations on the ahility of verifying officens of a venture st 10 n.ui_ and aq..ndﬂ:! & ool
effective basis DC&F and ICFR & defined in M1 52- _@ﬂ-<~ﬂ===_l==§_-_ﬁ.r.5-rd€=_uq of
itterim and annual [linge nd othor repons rovided umder securities Tegislation

NOTE TO READER
In oomrast w the ifh requiral wmdee Muhilateral b 52-L09 Centification of Bisclonre .:?:HI L:a_ﬁ..a_.i drmesi Filings (M1
52-119), this Venture _.zﬁ Baic Certificate doen nat include roy i relating w the of disch
congrols ind procaturcs (DCAF) and internal control over fisanial mporting (ICFR), B.E._En in M1 52- _S In particular, the certifying
ofTicers filing this cextificate are not making ey Tep relating 1o the establisk
i} cxmrols and other procoduces designal to provide Y bt i i .Eﬁn_.o..n Tosed by the issuer in it
amual filings., interim filings or ather repurts Slod or subviitted onder ities legistamion & recorded, processesd, sunrumized md

reparied within thetime periods spocified in 2ecurhies legidlation; aml

iiy 2 procest to provide reasonable sssurance reparding the rolisbility of fmancial repurting snd the preparation of financial statements for
extornal purpotes in accordance with tho issuer’s GAAP,

The ixsuer's centifying officas am respomible for ensuring that the procezses we i place to provide them with sufTicient knowledge 10 suppon
the rcproverations they are making in this certificate.

Investon shoald be aware tiat inherent lioitations o the ahility of canifying a.ﬂ.ﬂaeauaggﬁaaﬂﬁ.i implement o0 a cost
effective basis DC&P and ICFR as defined in M| 52-109 may resubk in additional risks in the quality, Y. p and of
pterin and wural filings &nd other reponts pravided umder securities legislstion




